
Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         September 12, 2022 
 

Russell County Page 1 
 

  
RUSSELL COUNTY 

 
BOARD OF SUPERVISOR’S MEETING 

 
AGENDA – SEPTEMBER 12, 2022 

 
Conference Room                              Regular Meeting               6:00 PM 

 
Russell County Governmental Center 

Lebanon, Virginia 24266 
 

 
 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL – Clerk of the Board 
 
INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PRESENTATION 
 

1. RC BOS Resolution - Linda Skeens – “Viral County Fair Queen” – Virginia-                   
Kentucky District Fair 
  

2. RC BOS Resolution – Annual Designation - April 9th (4/9) as “49 Winchester Day” 
 

3. Dora Martin – 2022 Vet-Fest 
 

4. Cuba Porter – RC PSA Report 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Approval of Minutes.  Consider approval of the minutes of the  
following meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors….……………A-1 
 

a. Unapproved minutes of August 1, 2022 
 

2. Approval of Expenditures. Consider approval of expenditures presented  
for payment……………………………………………………………………………...A-2 

 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         September 12, 2022 
 

Russell County Page 2 
 

 
3. Committee Appointments for Board Consideration……………………………...A-3 

 
Tourism Advisory Committee 
 
District 4 (Vacant)                         2 Year-Term             August 1, 2022 
 
Russell County Public Service Authority (PSA) 
 
Vacant                                            4 Year-Term                           August 1, 2022 
 
Russell County Public Library 
 
Karen Davis                                   4 Year-Term             September 20, 2022 
Sharon Sargent                             4 Year-Term                           September 20, 2022 
Sharon VanDyke                           4 Year-Term                           September 20, 2022 
 
Upper Tennessee River Roundtable 
  
Nathaniel Rasnake (Moved)        2 Year-Term                            December 31, 2022 
   

CITIZEN’S COMMENT PERIOD (Limited to 3 Minutes) 
 
CONSTITUTIONAL OFFICER REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 
COUNTY ATTORNEY REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 

1. Russell County Board of Supervisor’s “Pro-Life Resolution”…………………..B-1 
 

2. RC Personnel Policy – Insurance Retirement Program…..………………………B-2  
 

3. RC Landfill Consultant Contract………………………………………….…………..B-3 
 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 

REPORTS 
 

1. Fire & EMS Departments – ARPA Funds - $1,000 Per Month Allocation……...C-1 
 

2. VACo 2022 Annual Conference, Richmond Convention Center, November                         
13-15, 2022……………………………………………………..…………………………C-2 

 
3. VACo Region 12 & 13 Legislative Meeting - Russell County Gov’t Center 

August 23, 2022 – 1 P.M. to 3 P.M…………………………………………………….C-3 
 

4. Finney Disposal Site Proposed Location .………………………………………….C-4 
 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         September 12, 2022 
 

Russell County Page 3 
 

5. APA Court System Audit – RC Clerk of Circuit Court…………………………….C-5 
 
REQUESTS 
 
6. VDOT Dante Depot Renovation Contract……………………………………………C-6 

 
7. DHCD Dante Regional Sewer Line Extension Agreement………………………..C-7 

 
8. DCJS Victim Witness Program Grant - $70,000…………………………………….C-8 

 
9. Voter Registration – ICE Tabulator - $8,625…………………………………………C-9 

 
10. VDOT Resolution – Highway System – Project 7058-097-105, G302, G303…...C-10 

 
11. CSA Supplement Allocation Request - $11,141.09………………………………...C-11 

 
12. School Board Reversion Funds Correction - $356,522.13…………………..…...C-12 

 
13. National Opioids Settlement Payment - $43,265.96……………………………….C-13 

 
14. RC Deputy Emergency Management Coordinator..……………………………….C-14 

 
15. RC Tourism Coordinator……………………………………………………………….C-15 

 
16. RC Planning Commission Plat………………………………………………………..C-16 

 
17. RC Library Travel Requests – Kelly McBride – Belinda Levy Association                                      

for Rural & Small Libraries Conference 9/14 - 9/17 & Library of Virginia                              
Meeting, Richmond 9/22 – 9/23………………………………………………………..C-17 
 

BOARD DISCUSSIONS & REMINDERS 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
COUNTY AGENCY / BOARD REPORTS: 
        

• Treasurer’s Report ………………………………………………………………………D 
• RC IDA …………………………………………………………………………………….E 
• RC PSA …………………………………………………………………………………... F 
• RC Tourism……………………………………………………………………………….G 
• RC Planning Commission ……………………………………………………………..H 
• Conference Center……………………………………………………………………….I 
• RC Transportation & Safety…………………………………………………………....J 
• RC Cannery Reports…………………………………………………………………….K 
• RC Building Inspector…………………………………………………………………..L 
• RC Litter Report………………………………………………………………………….M   



                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
Board of Supervisors   Information Item  

137 Highland Drive                                  Presenters - Various 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

       Meeting: 9/12/22      6:00 PM 
 

 
Presentations  
 

 
1. RC BOS Resolution - Linda Skeens – “Viral County Fair Queen” – Virginia-                   

Kentucky District Fair 
  

2. RC BOS Resolution – Annual Designation - April 9th (4/9) as “49 Winchester Day” 
 

3. Dora Martin – 2022 Vet-Fest 
 

4. Cuba Porter – RC PSA Report  
 
 

Staff Recommendation: 
 

Presentation – Informational Only. 
 

Suggested Motion: 
 

Board Discretion.  
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
• Various  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PEOPLE 

Viral county fair legend Linda Skeens makes her TV debut on TODAY 
"I've been cooking and doing this for, what, SO-some years and so I don't understand why there's such a big deal," said Skeens. "But anyway, I appreciate it." 

July 21, 2022, 1:51 PM EDT 

By Joseph Lamour 

She's the woman who captured a nation's hearts without lifting a finger - except, you know, to make a spread of delicious Southern cooking at its 
most prize-winningest. 

Linda Skeens, the 74-year-old viral sensation who won 25 separate ribbons for her home cooking, baking and crafts at the Virginia-Kentucky District 
Fair this year appeared on TODAY Thursday for her very first television appearance. At last, we put a face to the name on the everyone's lips. 

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight





















Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight









 
     Board of Supervisors                       Action Item A-1 

137 Highland Drive  Presenter: Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

         Meeting: 9/12/22       6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Minutes  

Request approval of the minutes from the following meeting: 

o Unapproved minutes of August 1, 2022 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 
Board discretion 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve Board Minutes. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• Board Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



August 01, 2022 

A regular monthly meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors was held on Monday, August 01, 
2022 beginning with Executive (closed) Session at 5:00 pm followed by the regular meeting at 6:00 pm 
at the Russell County Government Center in Lebanon, Virginia. 

The Clerk called the meeting to order. 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the agenda as amended. 

The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 

APPROVAL OF THE JULY 11, 2022 MINUTES 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the July 11, 2022 minutes and dispense with the reading thereof. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF GENERAL COUNTY INVOICES 
 
Motion made by Oris Christian, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve general county invoices in the amount of $1,659,380.87, including reoccurring and 
withholdings. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Oris Christian, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, David Eaton, Steve Breeding and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 
 
Committee Appointments 
 

DAVID BLACKSON APPOINTED TO THE TAC 
 
Motion made by Oris Christian, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
appoint David Blackson to the Tourism Authority Committee to fill the unexpired term of Maddie 
Gordon, said term ending June 30, 2023. 
                           . 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Oris Christian, David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 
 

JANICE HALSEY APPOINTED TO THE TAC 
 

Tracy
Highlight



Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
appoint Janice Halsey to the Tourism Advisory Committee to fill the expired term of Jamie Ball, said term 
ending June 30, 2023. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF THE RESIGNATION OF DANNY ALTIZER FROM TAC 
 

Motion made by Rebecca Dye, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
accept the resignation of Danny Altizer from the Tourism Advisory Committee. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Rebecca Dye, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Lou Wallace and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

DOUG HUBBARD APPOINTED TO TAC 
 
Motion made by Rebecca Dye, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
appoint Doug Hubbard to the TAC to fill the unexpired term of Danny Altizer, said term ending June 30, 
2023. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Rebecca Dye, David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

DOUG HOWARD RE-APPOINTED TO THE SOUTHWEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY CORRECTIONS 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
re-appoint Doug Howard to the Southwest Virginia Community Corrections Board for a (2) two-year 
term, said term ending August 01, 2024. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

PHILLIP CAMPBELL APPOINTED TO THE RUSSELL COUNTY PSA 
 

Motion made by Rebecca Dye, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
appoint Phillip Campbell to The Russell County Public Service Authority for a (4) four-year term, said 
term ending June 24, 2026. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye: Rebecca Dye, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye, David Eaton and Steve Breeding 
Nay:  Oris Christian 
 

 



RESIGNATION OF ANGIE FARMER FROM CPMT 
 
Motion made by Rebecca Dye, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
accept the resignation of Angie Farmer from the Community Policy Management Team. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Rebecca Dye, Steve Breeding, Oris Christian, Tim Lovelace, David Eaton, Carl Rhea and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  None 
 

JENNIFER NUNLEY APPOINTED TO THE CPMT 
 
Motion made by Rebecca Dye, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
appoint Jennifer Nunley to the Community Policy Management Team to fill the unexpired term of Angie 
Farmer, said term ending October 12, 2024. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Rebecca Dye, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Lou Wallace and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

ALICE MEADE AND LARRY BURTON RE-APPOINTED TO THE AASC 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
re-appoint Alice Meade and Larry Burton to the Appalachian Agency for Senior Citizens for (4) four-year 
terms, said terms ending June 30, 2026. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
Presentation 
 
Marketta Puckett and Tracey Wilson presented some resources for Russell County citizens to get 
assistance for family members suffering from Alzheimer's.  The Alzheimer's Northeast Tennessee 
organization is available for citizens in need throughout the region, including Russell County. 
 
Citizens’ Comment 
 
The Chair opened citizens’ comment period. 
 
The following citizens commented in favor of Russell County becoming a Pro-Life Sanctuary County, they 
voiced concerns about protecting the unborn, the sanctity of life and opposition to abortion clinics 
locating in Russell County.  They wanted to see Russell County take the lead against abortion in 
Southwest Virginia.  Some of the citizens also voiced opposition to Suboxone Clinics being in the County.  
 
Jony Baker                       Jody Shelton  Stephen Musick        James Nunley             
Lynn Hess  John Salyer  Eddie Hall  Nate Kiser   
Steven Damron  Kenny Bolling  Tara Null  Steve Wallace 
Sandy Hess  Brandon Cassell Wanda Burke  Wally Kennedy   



Cody Jackson  Paul Herndon  Phillip McGlothlin Kristy Perkins 
Mike Dye  Tara Dye  Don Zamboni  Wayne Hubbard 
Sue Hubbard  Paul Day  Tim Whited  Kirby Meadows 
Gordon   Ethan Gross   
 
 
Roy Castle, Castlewood asked that the Board look at the road in Kingland Heights. 
 
Dora Martin invited the Board to attend Southwest Virginia Vet Fest at the Russell County Fairgrounds 
on September 24, 2022. 
 
Angela Carpenter, Lebanon commented about an issue from the last Board meeting concerning a right 
of way and her property. 
 
Raine Wells, Honaker spoke concerning Star Ministries and the work they do in the community.  She 
asked for a donation for a back to school event they are sponsoring. 
 
The Chair closed citizens’ comment. 
 
The Chair directed the County Attorney to pursue the possibility of an ordinance prohibiting the location 
of abortion clinics in the county and to make Russell County a Pro-Life Sanctuary.  
 
The Chair called for a short recess. 
 
The meeting was called back to order by Chair Lou Wallace. 
 
 
County Attorney Reports and Requests 
 

GIVENS SCHOOL LEASE RENEWED WITH STAR MINISTRIES, INC. 
 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
renew the Givens School Lease with Star Ministries, Inc. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF THE PURE SALMON PROJECT RESOLUTION 
 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a resolution concerning the Pure Salmon Project tax incentive contingent upon Tazewell and 
Buchanan County approval. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 



 
 
 
 

APPROVAL OF A LEASE AGREEMENT WITH B. WILLIAMS, LLC FOR DANTE STEAM BUILDING 
 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a lease agreement with B. Williams Resources, LLC for the Dante Steam Building subject to final 
approval by counsel for both parties. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO ACCEPT RC SCHOOL REVERSION FUNDS IN THE AMOUNT OF $574,758.18 
 
Motion made by Rebecca Dye, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
accept Russell County School reversion funds in the amount of $574,758.18. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Rebecca Dye, Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace and Oris Christian                
Nay:  None 
 

AUTHORIZATION TO HIRE A BUILDING INSPECTOR 
 

Motion made by Rebecca Dye second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
authorize the County Administrator to hire for the Building Inspector position. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:   Rebecca Dye, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, David Eaton, Steve Breeding and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF EMPLOYEE ALIGNMENT FOR THE RUSSELL COUNTY LIBRARY 
 
Motion made by Rebecca Dye, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a request from the Library Board of Trustees to proceed with an employment internal 
alignment. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Rebecca Dye, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, David Eaton, Lou Wallace and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
Abstain:  Steve Breeding 
 

APPROVAL OF A RESTORATION PROJECT FOR THE SWORDS CREEK OLD SCHOOL FACILITY 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a restoration project for the Swords Creek Old School Facility. 
 



The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
The meeting was adjourned by the Chairperson. 
 
 
 
  ______________________                      ________________________                    
 Clerk of the Board                                        Chairperson 
 
 



 
                                                      Board of Supervisors                         Action Item A-2 

137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

        Meeting: 9/12/22      6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Expenditures 

Request approval of the County’s August 2022 Monthly Expenditures: 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):  
County’s August 2022 Monthly Expenditures are in compliance with budget and operational 

services. 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve County’s August 2022 Monthly Expenditures. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• August 2022 Monthly Expenditures 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

























 
Board of Supervisors  Action Item:  A-3 

137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairperson  
Lebanon, VA 24266 

        Meeting: 9/12/22        6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

      Board Appointments 
1. Committee Appointments for Board Consideration 

 
Tourism Advisory Committee 
 
District 4 (Vacant)                         2 Year-Term    August 1, 2022 
 
Russell County Public Service Authority (PSA) 
 
Vacant                                            4 Year-Term                  August 1, 2022 
 
Russell County Public Library 
 
Karen Davis                                   4 Year-Term    September 20, 2022 
Sharon Sargent                             4 Year-Term                  September 20, 2022 
Sharon VanDyke                           4 Year-Term                  September 20, 2022 
 
Upper Tennessee River Roundtable 
  
Nathaniel Rasnake (Moved)        2 Year-Term                   December 31, 2022 























                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
    Board of Supervisors   Action Item 

137 Highland Drive                                  Presenters - Attorney 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

        Meeting: 9/12/22         6:00 PM 
 

 
County Attorney Reports  

 
1. Russell County Board of Supervisor’s “Pro-Life Resolution”…………………..B-1 

 
2. RC Personnel Policy – Insurance Retirement Program…..………………………B-2  

 
3. RC Landfill Consultant Contract………………………………………….…………..B-3 

 
 

 
Staff Recommendation: 

 
Board Discretion. 

 
Suggested Motion: 

 
Motion Required.  

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
• Various 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, RUSSELL COUNTY OF 

VIRGINIA DECLARING RUSSELL COUNTY TO BE A PRO-LIFE COUNTY 

 

WHEREAS, the United States Supreme Court recently overturned their decisions in Roe v. Wade 

and Planned Parenthood v. Casey which had previously held that the United States’ Constitution 

conferred a right to an abortion; and 

WHEREAS, the United States Supreme Court held in Dobbs v. Jackson Women’s Health Org. 

the right to an abortion was not a constitutional right and that the authority to regulate abortions 

was a matter for “the people and their elected representatives;” and 

WHEREAS, the Fifth and Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Constitution provide for 

the protection of human life; and  

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of Russell County, Virginia expresses their desire for 

Russell County to be a pro-life county. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Supervisors of Russell County, Virginia 

declares that Russell County is a pro-life county and pledges to support this resolution by all means 

within its power.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of Supervisors of Russell County, Virginia 

hereby declares that it has no interest in the recruitment, facilitation, or support of any companies 

or providers whose business activities serve to initiate, support or expand abortion services and 

the Board shall oppose the establishment of any such facilities to the extent of their power as 

allowed by state and federal law. 

CERTIFICATION OF ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 

The undersigned Clerk of the Board of Supervisors of Russell County, Virginia hereby certifies 

that the Resolution set forth above was adopted during an open meeting on September 12, 2022, 

by the Board of Supervisors with the following votes: 

 

Voting District: Supervisor:   Aye  Nay:  Abstain: 

1   Tim Lovelace   _____  _____  _____ 

2   Lou Ann Wallace  _____  _____  _____ 

3   Carl Rhea   _____  _____  _____ 

4   David Eaton   _____  _____  _____ 

5   Steven Breeding  _____  _____  _____  

6   Rebecca Dye   _____  _____  _____ 

At Large  Oris Christian   _____  _____  _____ 

 

Signed this _____day of September, 2022 

 

Tracy
Highlight



By:________________________ 

     Clerk, Board of Supervisors of  

      Russell County, Virginia 



 

 

Va. Code Ann. § 18.2-71 
Current through Chapter 2 of the 2022 Special Session I 

 

Code of Virginia 1950  >  Title 18.2. Crimes and Offenses Generally. (Chs. 1 — 13)  >  Chapter 4. 
Crimes Against the Person. (Arts. 1 — 9)  >  Article 9. Abortion. (§§ 18.2-71 — 18.2-76.2) 

 
§ 18.2-71. Producing abortion or miscarriage, etc.; penalty. 
 
 

Except as provided in other sections of this article, if any person administer to, or cause to be taken by a 
woman, any drug or other thing, or use means, with intent to destroy her unborn child, or to produce 
abortion or miscarriage, and thereby destroy such child, or produce such abortion or miscarriage, he shall 
be guilty of a Class 4 felony. 

History 
 
 
Code 1950, § 18.1-62; 1960, c. 358; 1970, c. 508; 1975, cc. 14, 15. 
 
Code of Virginia 1950 
Copyright © 2022 Code of Virginia (Annotated) 
Matthew Bender & Company, Inc. 
a member of the LexisNexis Group. All rights reserved. 
 

 
End of Document

about:blank
Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight



 

 

 

Va. Code Ann. § 18.2-71.1 
Current through Chapter 2 of the 2022 Special Session I 

 

Code of Virginia 1950  >  Title 18.2. Crimes and Offenses Generally. (Chs. 1 — 13)  >  Chapter 4. 
Crimes Against the Person. (Arts. 1 — 9)  >  Article 9. Abortion. (§§ 18.2-71 — 18.2-76.2) 

 
§ 18.2-71.1. Partial birth infanticide; penalty. 
 
 

A.  Any person who knowingly performs partial birth infanticide and thereby kills a human infant is guilty of a 
Class 4 felony. 

B.  For the purposes of this section, “partial birth infanticide” means any deliberate act that (i) is intended to 
kill a human infant who has been born alive, but who has not been completely extracted or expelled from its 
mother, and that (ii) does kill such infant, regardless of whether death occurs before or after extraction or 
expulsion from its mother has been completed. 
The term “partial birth infanticide” shall not under any circumstances be construed to include any of the 
following procedures: (i) the suction curettage abortion procedure, (ii) the suction aspiration abortion 
procedure, (iii) the dilation and evacuation abortion procedure involving dismemberment of the fetus prior to 
removal from the body of the mother, or (iv) completing delivery of a living human infant and severing the 
umbilical cord of any infant who has been completely delivered. 

C.  For the purposes of this section, “human infant who has been born alive” means a product of human 
conception that has been completely or substantially expelled or extracted from its mother, regardless of 
the duration of pregnancy, which after such expulsion or extraction breathes or shows any other evidence 
of life such as beating of the heart, pulsation of the umbilical cord, or definite movement of voluntary 
muscles, whether or not the umbilical cord has been cut or the placenta is attached. 

D.  For purposes of this section, “substantially expelled or extracted from its mother” means, in the case of 
a headfirst presentation, the infant’s entire head is outside the body of the mother, or, in the case of breech 
presentation, any part of the infant’s trunk past the navel is outside the body of the mother. 

E.  This section shall not prohibit the use by a physician of any procedure that, in reasonable medical 
judgment, is necessary to prevent the death of the mother, so long as the physician takes every medically 
reasonable step, consistent with such procedure, to preserve the life and health of the infant. A procedure 
shall not be deemed necessary to prevent the death of the mother if completing the delivery of the living 
infant would prevent the death of the mother. 

F.  The mother may not be prosecuted for any criminal offense based on the performance of any act or 
procedure by a physician in violation of this section. 

History 
 
 

 
2003, cc. 961, 963. 

 
Code of Virginia 1950 
Copyright © 2022 Code of Virginia (Annotated) 
Matthew Bender & Company, Inc. 

about:blank
about:blank
about:blank


 

 

 

Va. Code Ann. § 18.2-72 
Current through Chapter 2 of the 2022 Special Session I 

 

Code of Virginia 1950  >  Title 18.2. Crimes and Offenses Generally. (Chs. 1 — 13)  >  Chapter 4. 
Crimes Against the Person. (Arts. 1 — 9)  >  Article 9. Abortion. (§§ 18.2-71 — 18.2-76.2) 

 
§ 18.2-72. When abortion lawful during first trimester of pregnancy. 
 
 

Notwithstanding any of the provisions of § 18.2-71, it shall be lawful for (i) any physician licensed by the 
Board of Medicine to practice medicine and surgery or (ii) any person jointly licensed by the Boards of 
Medicine and Nursing as a nurse practitioner and acting within such person’s scope of practice to terminate 
or attempt to terminate a human pregnancy or aid or assist in the termination of a human pregnancy by 
performing an abortion or causing a miscarriage on any woman during the first trimester of pregnancy. 

History 
 
 

1975, cc. 14, 15; 2020, cc. 898, 899. 
 
Code of Virginia 1950 
Copyright © 2022 Code of Virginia (Annotated) 
Matthew Bender & Company, Inc. 
a member of the LexisNexis Group. All rights reserved. 
 

 
End of Document

about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank


 

 

 

Va. Code Ann. § 18.2-73 
Current through Chapter 2 of the 2022 Special Session I 

 

Code of Virginia 1950  >  Title 18.2. Crimes and Offenses Generally. (Chs. 1 — 13)  >  Chapter 4. 
Crimes Against the Person. (Arts. 1 — 9)  >  Article 9. Abortion. (§§ 18.2-71 — 18.2-76.2) 

 
§ 18.2-73. When abortion lawful during second trimester of pregnancy. 
 
 

Notwithstanding any of the provisions of § 18.2-71 and in addition to the provisions of § 18.2-72, it shall be 
lawful for any physician licensed by the Board of Medicine to practice medicine and surgery, to terminate or 
attempt to terminate a human pregnancy or aid or assist in the termination of a human pregnancy by 
performing an abortion or causing a miscarriage on any woman during the second trimester of pregnancy 
and prior to the third trimester of pregnancy provided such procedure is performed in a hospital licensed by 
the State Department of Health or operated by the Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental 
Services. 

History 
 
 

1975, cc. 14, 15; 2009, cc. 813, 840. 
 
Code of Virginia 1950 
Copyright © 2022 Code of Virginia (Annotated) 
Matthew Bender & Company, Inc. 
a member of the LexisNexis Group. All rights reserved. 
 

 
End of Document

about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank


 

 

 

Va. Code Ann. § 18.2-74.1 
Current through Chapter 2 of the 2022 Special Session I 

 

Code of Virginia 1950  >  Title 18.2. Crimes and Offenses Generally. (Chs. 1 — 13)  >  Chapter 4. 
Crimes Against the Person. (Arts. 1 — 9)  >  Article 9. Abortion. (§§ 18.2-71 — 18.2-76.2) 

 
§ 18.2-74.1. Abortion, etc., when necessary to save life of woman. 
 
 

In the event it is necessary for a licensed physician to terminate a human pregnancy or assist in the 
termination of a human pregnancy by performing an abortion or causing a miscarriage on any woman in 
order to save her life, in the opinion of the physician so performing the abortion or causing the miscarriage, 
§§ 18.2-71, 18.2-73 and 18.2-74 shall not be applicable. 

History 
 
 
Code 1950, § 18.1-62.3; 1970, c. 508; 1975, cc. 14, 15. 
 
Code of Virginia 1950 
Copyright © 2022 Code of Virginia (Annotated) 
Matthew Bender & Company, Inc. 
a member of the LexisNexis Group. All rights reserved. 
 

 
End of Document

about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank


 

 

 

Va. Code Ann. § 18.2-74 
Current through Chapter 2 of the 2022 Special Session I 

 

Code of Virginia 1950  >  Title 18.2. Crimes and Offenses Generally. (Chs. 1 — 13)  >  Chapter 4. 
Crimes Against the Person. (Arts. 1 — 9)  >  Article 9. Abortion. (§§ 18.2-71 — 18.2-76.2) 

 
§ 18.2-74. When abortion or termination of pregnancy lawful after second 
trimester of pregnancy. 
 
 

Notwithstanding any of the provisions of § 18.2-71 and in addition to the provisions of §§ 18.2-72 and 18.2-
73, it shall be lawful for any physician licensed by the Board of Medicine to practice medicine and surgery 
to terminate or attempt to terminate a human pregnancy or aid or assist in the termination of a human 
pregnancy by performing an abortion or causing a miscarriage on any woman in a stage of pregnancy 
subsequent to the second trimester provided the following conditions are met: 

(a)  Said operation is performed in a hospital licensed by the Virginia State Department of Health or 
operated by the Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services. 

(b)  The physician and two consulting physicians certify and so enter in the hospital record of the 
woman, that in their medical opinion, based upon their best clinical judgment, the continuation of the 
pregnancy is likely to result in the death of the woman or substantially and irremediably impair the 
mental or physical health of the woman. 

(c)  Measures for life support for the product of such abortion or miscarriage must be available and 
utilized if there is any clearly visible evidence of viability. 

History 
 
 

1975, cc. 14, 15; 2009, cc. 813, 840. 

 
Code of Virginia 1950 
Copyright © 2022 Code of Virginia (Annotated) 
Matthew Bender & Company, Inc. 
a member of the LexisNexis Group. All rights reserved. 
 

 
End of Document

about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank


 

 

 

Va. Code Ann. § 18.2-75 
Current through Chapter 2 of the 2022 Special Session I 

 

Code of Virginia 1950  >  Title 18.2. Crimes and Offenses Generally. (Chs. 1 — 13)  >  Chapter 4. 
Crimes Against the Person. (Arts. 1 — 9)  >  Article 9. Abortion. (§§ 18.2-71 — 18.2-76.2) 

 
§ 18.2-75. Conscience clause. 
 
 

Nothing in §§ 18.2-72, 18.2-73 or § 18.2-74 shall require a hospital or other medical facility or physician to 
admit any patient under the provisions hereof for the purpose of performing an abortion. In addition, any 
person who shall state in writing an objection to any abortion or all abortions on personal, ethical, moral or 
religious grounds shall not be required to participate in procedures which will result in such abortion, and 
the refusal of such person, hospital or other medical facility to participate therein shall not form the basis of 
any claim for damages on account of such refusal or for any disciplinary or recriminatory action against 
such person, nor shall any such person be denied employment because of such objection or refusal. The 
written objection shall remain in effect until such person shall revoke it in writing or terminate his association 
with the facility with which it is filed. 

History 
 
 
Code 1950, § 18.1-63.1; 1974, c. 679; 1975, cc. 14, 15. 
 
Code of Virginia 1950 
Copyright © 2022 Code of Virginia (Annotated) 
Matthew Bender & Company, Inc. 
a member of the LexisNexis Group. All rights reserved. 
 

 
End of Document

about:blank
about:blank
about:blank


 

 

 

Va. Code Ann. § 18.2-76 
Current through Chapter 2 of the 2022 Special Session I 

 

Code of Virginia 1950  >  Title 18.2. Crimes and Offenses Generally. (Chs. 1 — 13)  >  Chapter 4. 
Crimes Against the Person. (Arts. 1 — 9)  >  Article 9. Abortion. (§§ 18.2-71 — 18.2-76.2) 

 
§ 18.2-76. Informed written consent required. 
 
 

Before performing any abortion or inducing any miscarriage or terminating a pregnancy as provided in 
§ 18.2-72, 18.2-73, or 18.2-74, the physician or, if such abortion, induction, or termination is to be 
performed pursuant to § 18.2-72, either the physician or the nurse practitioner authorized pursuant to 
clause (ii) of § 18.2-72 to perform such abortion, induction, or termination shall obtain the informed written 
consent of the pregnant woman. However, if the woman has been adjudicated incapacitated by any court of 
competent jurisdiction or if the physician or, if the abortion, induction, or termination is to be performed 
pursuant to § 18.2-72, either the physician or the nurse practitioner authorized pursuant to clause (ii) of 
§ 18.2-72 to perform such abortion, induction, or termination knows or has good reason to believe that such 
woman is incapacitated as adjudicated by a court of competent jurisdiction, then only after permission is 
given in writing by a parent, guardian, committee, or other person standing in loco parentis to the woman, 
may the physician or, if the abortion, induction, or termination is to be performed pursuant to § 18.2-72, 
either the physician or the nurse practitioner authorized pursuant to clause (ii) of § 18.2-72 to perform such 
abortion, induction, or termination perform the abortion or otherwise terminate the pregnancy. 

History 
 
 

Code 1950, § 18.1-62.1; 1970, c. 508; 1972, c. 823; 1975, cc. 14, 15; 1979, c. 250; 1997, c. 801; 2001, cc. 473, 
477; 2003, c. 784; 2012, c. 131; 2020, cc. 898, 899. 
 
Code of Virginia 1950 
Copyright © 2022 Code of Virginia (Annotated) 
Matthew Bender & Company, Inc. 
a member of the LexisNexis Group. All rights reserved. 
 

 
End of Document

about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank


 

 

 

Va. Code Ann. § 18.2-76.1 
Current through Chapter 2 of the 2022 Special Session I 

 

Code of Virginia 1950  >  Title 18.2. Crimes and Offenses Generally. (Chs. 1 — 13)  >  Chapter 4. 
Crimes Against the Person. (Arts. 1 — 9)  >  Article 9. Abortion. (§§ 18.2-71 — 18.2-76.2) 

 
§ 18.2-76.1. Encouraging or promoting abortion. 
 
 

If any person, by publication, lecture, advertisement, or by the sale or circulation of any publication, or 
through the use of a referral agency for profit, or in any other manner, encourage or promote the performing 
of an abortion or the inducing of a miscarriage in this Commonwealth which is prohibited under this article, 
he shall be guilty of a Class 3 misdemeanor. 

History 
 
 
Code 1950, § 18.1-63; 1960, c. 358; 1972, c. 725; 1975, cc. 14, 15. 
 
Code of Virginia 1950 
Copyright © 2022 Code of Virginia (Annotated) 
Matthew Bender & Company, Inc. 
a member of the LexisNexis Group. All rights reserved. 
 

 
End of Document 

about:blank


 
 

Russell County Board of Supervisors 

INSURANCE RETIREMENT PROGRAM 

 
The Russell County Board of Supervisors agrees to participate in the following 

hospitalization benefits                              for retirees: 

 
Eligibility: 

 

1. Employees who are members of the Virginia Retirement System and are 

eligible to retire. 

2. The employee must be at least age 50,but must not have reached the age of    

Medicare Insurance eligibility. 

3. The employee must have fifteen (15) years of service with the Russell County 

Board of Supervisors including the ten (10) years immediately preceding 

retirement. 

4. An Insurance Retirement Program application must be received by the 

County Administrator within 90 days of an effective retirement date. 

Employees approved by                                the Virginia Retirement System to receive disability 

benefits at any time during                              the calendar year will be eligible for application to 

this program with an effective date to coincide                                 with their retirement thru the 

Virginia Retirement System. 

5. Elected Constitutional Officers and any employees whose salary is solely paid 

by grant funding are not eligible to participate in this program. 

6. Elected Constitutional Officers are required to adopt, implement, and maintain 

the most current version of the sick leave and/or personal leave section(s) of 

the Personnel Policy duly adopted by the Russell County Board of 

Supervisors. Constitutional Officers are not required to adopt the entire 

personnel policy. Constitutional Officers must also require monthly time 

sheets to be submitted to them for employees to be eligible for participation in 

this program. Failure to abide by either of these requirements at any point will 

render any employee ineligible for participation in this program. 

 
Benefits:  

 

The retiree agrees to trade, without pay, a minimum of 25 days of unused 

accumulated sick/personal leave balances per calendar year at retirement date or a 

total of 175 days over a seven-year period, in exchange to pay a percentage of the 

health insurance premium up to seven years or until the retiree reaches the  age of 

Medicare insurance eligibility, whichever comes first. The retiree will be allowed to 

trade unused accumulated sick/personal leave days for the days required as 

specified above. The percentage is based on total years of service as listed below: 

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight



 
 

 

15 years service… ............ ..60% of insurance paid by the board 
 

16-20 years service… ....... .65% of insurance paid by the board 
 

21-24 years service… .........70% of insurance paid by the board 
 

25-29 years service… .........80% of insurance paid by the board 
 

30+ years service… ............ 85% of insurance paid by the board 
 

The Board will pay the percentage for a single healthcare plan policy for the 

retiree.  Employee Plus One and Family coverage (retiree, spouse, and siblings or 

retiree and siblings) would require the retiree to pay the difference between the cost of a 

single plan and the cost of an employee plus one or a family healthcare plan.  The 

hospitalization  insurance must be through the group insurance plan purchased by the 

Russell County School Board for the regular employees and will be subject to all the 

rules and regulations governing this policy. 

In the event the retiree becomes deceased during the contract period before all 

days are purchased, the spouse/dependent/estate administrator of the deceased retiree 

would receive the unused accumulated balances of sick/personal leave remaining.  The 

reimbursement will be equal to the rate paid for unused sick/personal leave at  the time 

of retirement. 

 

Application Procedures 
 

Employees who wish to participate in the Retirement Insurance Program (the 

“Program”) should submit an application to the Russell County Administrator within 90 

days prior to the anticipated date of retirement. 

 
Revocability 

 

Applicants for the program may withdraw their applications upon request.   

Failure                         to meet the yearly minimum purchase requirement could result in the 

revocation of insurance benefits. 

 
Rescinding of Program 

 

This policy is subject to appropriations by the Russell County Board of 

Supervisors.  Intent to rescind the policy will be published at the regular monthly                                   Board 

meetings preceding the Board Meeting at which a vote is to be  taken.   In the event, the 

plan is rescinded, participants already in the plan will continue to receive benefits. 

 
 



PUBLIC NOTICE 
 

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS (RFQ) 

Landfill Development Feasibility  

Technical and Environmental Consulting Services 
The County of Russell is currently seeking Landfill Feasibility Technical and 
Environmental Consulting Services with capabilities and experience in landfill 
development from a qualified and experienced firms/consultants to provide support for 
the Russell County’s Landfill Feasibility Project. The Board of Supervisors of Russell 
County, Virginia, hereinafter referred to as “The Board,” hereby issues to qualified firms 
and individuals, a Request for Qualifications (hereinafter referred to as “RFQ”). The 
Board proposes to award a contract for landfill technical and environmental consulting 
services to assist the Board in determining the feasibility of a substantial landfill project. 

 
Statements of Qualification will be evaluated based on the following information: 

 
1. Experience and qualifications of firms or individuals. 
2. Offeror’s past work experience with feasibility of substantial landfill projects. 
3. Relevant experience in providing similar consulting services. 
4. Capability to meet landfill technical and environmental consulting services 

requirements. 
5. Experience in landfill technical and environmental consulting services in the following 

environmental areas but not limited to:. 
• Groundwater Monitoring  
• Wetlands  
• Water Quality 
• Gas Monitoring 
• Storm Water  
• Environmental Assessments  
• Ecological Studies  
• Hazardous Waste  
• Landfill Federal, State, and County Regulatory Compliance  

 
Firms/consultants meeting the requirements of this RFQ are invited to submit their 
proposal. Request for Qualifications (RFQ) are available on the County’s Website Bid 
Postings • Russell County, VA • CivicEngage (russellcountyva.us) or email 
lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us to request the RFQ. 

 

Proposals are due no later than 3:00 p.m., Monday, June 6, 2022. Any proposals received 
after this deadline will be returned to the offeror unopened.  The County reserves the right 
to reject any and all proposals. 

 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (small or minority and/or women owned firms) are 
encouraged to submit proposals. MBE/WBE firms are encouraged to submit proposals. 

 
The County is an equal opportunity/affirmative action employer and will not discriminate 
based on race, creed, color, national origin, age, or handicap. 

 
                                                                      BY ORDER OF THE  

RUSSELL COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

https://www.russellcountyva.us/Bids.aspx
https://www.russellcountyva.us/Bids.aspx
mailto:lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us
Tracy
Highlight



Date 

Mr. Lonzo Lester, County Administrator 
Russell County Board of Supervisors 
137  Highland Drive, Suite A
P.O.  Box 1208 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

Re: Landfill Feasibility Study 

Dear Mr. Lester: 

The Contractor will provide a proposal for consulting services for the above referenced project for a fee 
based on time and expenses, not-to-exceed $_________.  The County and a developer and its engineer are 
considering developing a private landfill   i n   the Carbo area of Russell County.  Russell County will be reviewing 
and considering documentation provided by  the developer and engineer. 

Scope of Services 

The Contractor will provide the following services associated with the Landfill Feasibility Study: 

• Conduct a site visit/tour and meet with Owner/Developer/Engineer.
• Perform a technical review of a Part A permit application for a new landfill.
• Review/evaluate the following (to be provided by developer)

• Initial Total Project Costs including Phase I landfill liner and fixed infrastructure including road, 
scales, leachate treatment system, gas handling system, landfill operational
equipment, buildings for administration and maintenance, stormwater management system, 
water and sewer service, electrical service, establishment of longterm borrow area for cover, 
and related costs such as administration, legal, engineering, interest,
contingency.

• Projected future project costs for additional landfill liner expansions and other capital cost 
projects.

• Operations budget including labor, maintenance/repairs, fuel, leachate disposal, gas 
management, groundwater/surface water/gas monitoring and testing, annual
groundwater report, borrow area operation.

• Funded depreciation schedule (sinking fund for equipment replacement, future capital 
construction, closure of landfill segments reaching final contour during operation,
closure of landfill at end of landfill life, 30-year post closure period)



• Project proforma or financial forecast/outlook o f  the project once development
construction is completed; required revenue; guaranteed waste streams, fee structure,
terms, etc.

• Assess hostfee, compared to comparable localities with private landfills.
• Assess initial and projected solid waste disposal rates and any costs for out of  state

waste.

Project schedule 

The Contractor will complete the proposed Landfill Feasibility Study for submittal to the Owner within 
ninety (90) days of  the County and Contractor entering into a written agreement and issuing a notice-
to-proceed. 

Enclosure: Schedule of Hourly Rates 



SCHEDULE OF HOURLY RATES 

 TYPICAL HOURLY RATES 
INDIVIDUAL CLASSIFICATIONS  (Current Rates)  
Officer-in-Charge $ _____ 
Associate $ _____ 
Senior Project Manager $ _____ 
Project Manager $ _____ 
Senior Engineer $ _____ 
Project Engineer $ _____ 
Design Engineer $ _____ 
Senior Technician $ _____ 
Technician $ _____ 
Senior Architect $ _____ 
Project Architect $ _____ 
Intern Architect $ _____ 

Senior Surveyor $ _____ 
Surveyor $ _____ 
Senior Survey Technician $ _____ 

Survey Technician $ _____ 

3-Person Survey Party $ _____ 
2-Person Survey Party $ _____ 
Senior Construction Contract Administrator $ _____ 
Construction Contract Administrator $ _____ 
Senior Construction Representative $ _____ 
Construction Representative $ _____ 

Specifications and Technical Composer $ ____
Administrative Assistant $ _____
Clerical $ _____ 
 







EFFECTIVE: Through June 30, 2023   
 
 THOMPSON & LITTON 
  SCHEDULE OF HOURLY RATES  

          TYPICAL HOURLY RATES 
INDIVIDUAL CLASSIFICATIONS         (Current Rates)   
Officer-in-Charge   $ 275.00 
Associate   $ 210.00 
Senior Project Manager   $ 190.00 
Project Manager   $ 150.00 
Senior Engineer   $ 180.00 
Project Engineer   $ 143.00 
Design Engineer   $ 108.00 
Senior Technician   $ 100.00 
Technician   $ 70.00 
Senior Architect   $ 176.00 
Project Architect   $ 125.00 
Intern Architect   $ 88.00 
Senior Surveyor   $ 165.00 
Surveyor   $ 100.00 
Senior Survey Technician   $ 74.00 
Survey Technician   $ 65.00 
3-Person Survey Party   $ 215.00 
2-Person Survey Party   $ 150.00 
Senior Construction Contract Administrator   $ 155.00 
Construction Contract Administrator   $ 105.00 
Senior Construction Representative   $ 103.00 
Construction Representative   $ 75.00 
Specifications and Technical Composer   $ 75.00 
Administrative Assistant   $ 85.00 
Clerical   $ 58.00  
 REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES 
Consultants and subcontractors will be billed at Direct Cost times 1.20. 
Transportation and out-of-town subsistence will be billed at Direct Cost times 1.15. 
 
Mileage for use of personal or company vehicles – Effective IRS mileage rate. 
 
Long distance telephone calls, facsimiles, printing or items not customarily provided by the 
Consultant shall be charged at Direct Cost times 1.15. 
 
REPRODUCTION:   A) 8 1/2 x 11 page, per copy (black/white) ........................................ $0.20 

B) 8 1/2 x 11 page, per copy (color) ................................................... $0.60 
C) 11 x 17 page, per copy (black/white) ............................................ $0.50 
D) 11 x 17 page, per copy (color) ....................................................... $0.85 

                         E) Large Drawings, per square foot ................................................... $0.65 
   F) Large Drawings, per square foot (color) ........................................ $1.25 
 
FINANCIAL: Invoices are payable within thirty days. Interest is, therefore, charged in the event of 
non-payment within sixty days. An interest rate 1% per month will be charged and applied to the 
unpaid balance monthly. 



POTESTA & ASSOCIATES, INC. 
Charleston, West Virginia    •    Morgantown, West Virginia     •     Winchester, Virginia 

 

Engineers and Environmental Consultants 
15 South Braddock Street, Winchester, VA  22601  •  (540) 450-0180  •  www.potesta.com 

 
 
 
VIA EMAIL ONLY 
 
August 19, 2022 
 
 
 
Mr. Lonzo Lester 
County Administrator 
Russell County Board of Supervisors 
137 Highland Drive, Suite A 
PO Box 1208 
Lebanon, Virginia  24266 
 
RE: Proposal for Consulting Services 
 Landfill Feasibility Information Review 
 Carbo Area of Russell County, Virginia 
 Potesta Project No. 0103-22-0164 
 
Dear Mr. Lester: 
 
Potesta & Associates, Inc. (POTESTA) appreciates the opportunity to submit this proposal to review 
information provided by the developer/engineer of a solid waste disposal facility on a parcel of 
property in the Carbo area of Russell County.  We understand that a private developer has informed 
the Russell County Board of Supervisors (County) that they are considering developing a private 
landfill in the Carbo area.  The County is considering engaging POTESTA to evaluate the 
information, data and documentation provided by the developer and their engineer to help the 
County in determining the feasibility and advisability of a landfill on the property. 
 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
POTESTA will perform the following services in our review. 
 
Task 1 – Reconnaissance of the Site 
 
We will meet with the owner/developer/engineer and perform a reconnaissance of the site.  Our goal 
for the site visit is to understand the various facilities to be constructed, their approximate locations, 
the various phases of the development of the site, etc. 
 
Task 2 – Technical Review of Solid Waste Disposal Facility 
 
POTESTA will perform a technical review of the Solid Waste Disposal Facility Part A Application 
Form, DEQ Form SW PTA, prepared by the developer/engineer.  We will issue a letter report 
summarizing our evaluation of the Part A application. 
 



Mr. Lonzo Lester 

August 19, 2022 

Page 2 
 

 

Task 3 – Evaluation of Detailed Design Documents 
 
Assuming that no critical flows are identified during Tasks 1 and 2, we will evaluate more detailed 
information prepared by the developer and their engineer as it becomes available.  
Documents/information anticipated to be reviewed include: 
 

▪ Initial total project costs including Phase I landfill liner and fixed infrastructure 
including road, scales, leachate treatment system, gas handling system, landfill 
operation equipment, buildings for administration and maintenance, stormwater 
management system, water and sewer service, electrical service, establishment of 
long-term borrow area for cover, and related costs such as administration, legal, 
engineering, interest, and contingency. 

▪ Projected future project costs for additional landfill liner expansions and other capital 
cost projects. 

▪ Operations budget including labor, maintenance/repairs, fuel, leachate disposal, gas 
management, groundwater/surface water/gas monitoring and testing, annual 
groundwater report, and borrow area operation. 

▪ Funded depreciation schedule (sinking fund for equipment replacement, future 
capital construction, closure of landfill segments reaching final contour during 
operation, closure of landfill at end of landfill life, 30-year post-closure period). 

▪ Project proforma or financial forecast/outlook of the project once development 
construction is completed; required revenue; guaranteed waste streams, fee structure, 
terms, etc. 

▪ Assess host fee, compared to comparable localities with private landfills. 
▪ Assess initial and projected solid waste disposal rates and any costs for out of state 

waste. 
▪ Advise essential elements of Host Agreement should the County decide to proceed 

with development. 
 
It is noted that the developer and their engineer are preparing and submitting these documents for 
POTESTA’s review on behalf of the County.  POTESTA will provide a letter report(s) summarizing 
the results of our evaluation(s).  POTESTA will also inform the County if there are other documents 
that we believe should be provided by the developer/engineer for review on the County’s behalf (the 
time and cost for review of these such other documents is not included in our schedule and cost 
below). 
 
SCHEDULE AND COST 
 
POTESTA will complete Tasks 1 and 2 within 45 days of receipt of the completed Part A 
application.  We will complete our evaluation of the items to be provided in Task 3 within 30-45 
days of the submittal date of each individual item by the developer/engineer. 
 
POTESTA will perform the services described in Tasks 1 through 3 above (excluding such other 
documents described above in Task 3 that we may recommend be submitted to the County) on an 
hourly rate basis for an estimated not-to-exceed cost of $45,000.  Our services are rendered in 



Mr. Lonzo Lester 

August 19, 2022 

Page 3 
 

 

accordance with our standard terms and conditions which are considered a part of this proposal.  Our 
standard hourly rate sheet is attached as well. 
 
The estimated costs presented in this proposal for the associated scope of services are based upon the 
use of POTESTA’s standard billing invoice format (example attached).  There is no cost for this 
invoice format.  Staff efforts to generate other invoice formats will be charged to the project budget 
at the billing rate of the individuals preparing such specialized invoices.  The cost of such specialized 
invoices is in addition to the estimated project costs provided in this proposal and, therefore, 
constitutes a change in the scope of services presented herein.  Please complete the invoice routing 
information below to include the name and address to whom the invoice should be sent and any 
individuals that should receive copies. 
 
If there are other services that the County sees as important that we have not addressed here, just let 
me know and we well make any necessary adjustments to the proposal. 
 
If this proposal is acceptable, please signed in the space provided below to serve as our approval to 
proceed with the project. 
 
CLOSING 
 
We look forward to the opportunity to serve you on this exciting project. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
POTESTA & ASSOCIATES, INC. 
 
 
 
David Paylor 
Vice President 
 
DP/clr 
Enclosures 
 

AUTHORIZATION (Signature Required to Proceed) 

     

 Signature  Date  

 

POTESTA Invoice Routing Information (Client to Complete) 

Name:       Title: 

Mailing Address: 

Telephone:      Email: 

Copies to: 

 Check here if invoice addressee/address is same as proposal. 
Project No. 0103-22-0164 







POTESTA & ASSOCIATES, INC. 
Charleston, West Virginia    •    Morgantown, West Virginia     •     Winchester, Virginia 

 

Engineers and Environmental Consultants 
7012 MacCorkle Avenue, SE, Charleston, WV  25304  •  (304) 342-1400  •  www.potesta.com 

 
 

 

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

 

1. Potesta & Associates, Inc., hereinafter referred to as POTESTA, is an Equal Opportunity 

Employer and is in compliance with the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 and 

governmental requirements relating to Right-To-Know regulations.  The engineering and 

consulting services of POTESTA will be performed on an hourly basis for all time rendered 

to the project, unless the project is quoted for a lump sum, including project scoping by 

professional, technical, and clerical personnel in accordance with the attached hourly rate 

schedule.  All invoice charges are based on and are payable in U.S. dollars. 

 

2. Services performed by POTESTA under this Agreement will be conducted in a manner 

consistent with that level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the 

profession currently practicing in the same locality under similar conditions.  No other 

representation, express or implied, and no warranty or guarantee is included or intended in 

this Agreement, or in any report, opinion, document or otherwise. 

 

3. Unless stated otherwise, any cost estimate presented in the attached proposal is for 

budgetary purposes only and is not a fixed lump-sum price.  The actual cost of POTESTA’s 

engineering and consulting services and all expenses may be less than that estimated; 

accordingly, only the cost incurred will be invoiced.  If at any time during the progress of 

the work it appears that the estimated cost will be exceeded, Client will be informed 

immediately.  However, unless written notification is received to stop work, POTESTA 

will continue working on the project to completion and will invoice Client for all 

engineering and consulting services and expenses incurred. 

 

4. These terms are subject to and incorporate the provisions of POTESTA’s attached 

proposal.  In the event of any conflict, the terms of the accompanying proposal shall govern. 

 

5. Invoices will be submitted periodically as required (but not more frequently than every two 

(2) weeks) unless charges for such periods are minimal, in which event an invoice will be 

submitted when total charges exceed $500.00, or when the work is completed, whichever 

occurs first.  Invoices are due and payable within 30 days from the date of invoice.  All 

delinquent charges are subject to a service charge of 12 percent per month or a fraction 

thereof.  Should Client fail to pay any invoice within 45 days of its date, POTESTA may, 

upon 3 days’ written notice to Client, stop work and recover from Client payment for all 

work executed.  Clients requiring specific invoice formats or accounting backup (copies 

of timesheets, copies of receipts or invoice support data, etc.) will be invoiced for those 

associated costs; these costs are not included in our proposal and will be invoiced in 

addition to the approved proposal costs. 

 

6. Client agrees to limit POTESTA’s liability to Client and to all construction contractors and 

subcontractors on the project due to POTESTA’s professional negligent acts, errors, or 



Potesta & Associates, Inc. 
Standard Terms and Conditions 

Page 2 

 

 

Revised 12/23/2021 

omissions, such that the total aggregate liability of POTESTA to all those named shall 

not exceed $50,000 or POTESTA’s total fee for all expenses and services rendered on this 

project, whichever is greater. 

 

7. POTESTA shall indemnify and hold harmless the Client, its officers, directors, 

shareholders and employees (collectively, “Client Indemnities”), from and against those 

liabilities, losses, damages, and costs (including reasonable attorney’s fees where 

recoverable by law) that Client is legally obligated to pay as a result of third party claims, 

to the extent caused by the intentional or negligent act, error, or omission of POTESTA or 

anyone for whom POTESTA is legally responsible, subject to any limitations of liability 

contained in this Agreement. 

 

Client shall indemnify and hold harmless POTESTA, its officers, directors, shareholders 

and employees (collectively, “Client Indemnities”), from and against those liabilities, 

losses, damages, and costs (including reasonable attorney’s fees where recoverable by law) 

that POTESTA is legally obligated to pay as a result of third party claims, to the extent 

caused by the intentional or negligent act, error, or omission of the Client or anyone for 

whom the Client is legally responsible, subject to any limitations of liability contained in 

this Agreement. 

 

8. Time required for POTESTA personnel to travel between POTESTA’s office and the site 

(or other destination applicable to the project) is charged in accordance with the attached 

hourly rate schedule. 

 

9. POTESTA expenses shall be charged according to the attached Field Supply and 

Equipment Rate Sheet.  External expenses, such as airfare, subcontracted services, etc., 

shall be charged at direct cost (including taxes) plus a twelve percent (12%) surcharge to 

the project.  A per diem (daily food allowance) of $35.00 per day will be charged for all 

personnel required by the work to remain away from their normal residence.  For those 

working out of the office area, but not spending the night, an allowance for lunch ($6.50 

maximum) and, if arriving back after 7:30 p.m., for dinner ($17.50 maximum) may be 

charged.  Lodging will be charged at $90.00/night, except in limited availability areas 

where it will be charged at direct cost plus a twelve percent (12%) surcharge. 

 

10. Specialized equipment purchased with Client’s approval specifically for the project will 

become Client’s property upon completion of the work.  The purchase price and 

maintenance cost of such equipment shall be charged to Client at cost plus twelve percent 

(12%). 

 

11. Client acknowledges that POTESTA’s reports, boring logs, field data, field notes, 

laboratory test data, calculations, estimates, permit applications and other similar 

documents are instruments of professional service, not products.  Although ownership of 

such documents normally is retained by POTESTA, they nonetheless shall, in this instance, 



Potesta & Associates, Inc. 
Standard Terms and Conditions 

Page 3 

 

 

Revised 12/23/2021 

become the property of Client upon Client’s payment in full of all POTESTA invoices.  

Client recognizes that no such documents should be subject to unauthorized reuse; that is, 

reuse without written authorization of POTESTA to do so.  Such authorization is essential 

because it requires POTESTA to evaluate the documents’ applicability given new 

circumstances, not the least of which is passage of time.  Accordingly, in return for 

POTESTA’s relinquishment of ownership, Client agrees to waive any claim against 

POTESTA and defend, indemnify and hold POTESTA harmless from any claim or liability 

for injury or loss allegedly arising from unauthorized reuse of POTESTA’s instruments of 

service.  Client further agrees to compensate POTESTA for any time spent or expenses 

incurred by POTESTA in defense of any such claim, in accordance with POTESTA’s 

prevailing fee schedule and expense reimbursement policy.  Client agrees that POTESTA 

may retain one set of documents for their files and use. 

 

12. Client recognizes that conclusions regarding the assessed condition(s) of the site do not 

necessarily represent a warranty that all portions of the site are of the same quality.  Specific 

conditions may not be observable or readily interpreted from available documents, but may 

become evident at a later date.  POTESTA will be responsible for data it collects, its 

interpretations and recommendations, but shall not be responsible for the interpretation by 

others of the information developed.  The Client recognizes that subsurface conditions 

beneath the Project site may vary from those encountered in borings, surveys or 

explorations and the information and recommendations developed by POTESTA are based 

solely on the information available from such borings, surveys and explorations. 

 

13. Client recognizes that unanticipated or changed conditions may be encountered during 

construction.  Client agrees to retain POTESTA to observe construction, and POTESTA 

agrees to assign qualified persons to observe and report on the quality of work performed 

by contractors, et al.  Client recognizes that construction observation is a technique 

employed to minimize the risk of problems arising during construction.  Provision of 

construction observation by POTESTA is not insurance, nor does it constitute a warranty 

or guarantee of any type.  In all cases, contractors, et al. shall retain responsibility for the 

quality of their work and for adhering to plans and specifications.  Should Client for any 

reason not retain POTESTA to observe construction, or should Client unduly restrict 

POTESTA’s assignment of personnel to observe construction, or should POTESTA for 

any reason not perform construction observation during the full period of construction, it 

shall be deemed that POTESTA shall not have had the ability to perform a complete 

service.  Should POTESTA for any reason not have the ability to perform a complete 

service, Client waives any claim against POTESTA, and agrees to indemnify, defend and 

hold POTESTA harmless from any claim or liability for injury or loss arising from 

problems during construction that allegedly result from findings, conclusions, 

recommendations, plans or specifications developed by POTESTA.  Client also agrees to 

compensate POTESTA for any time spent and expenses incurred by POTESTA in defense 

of any such claim, with such compensation to be based upon POTESTA’s prevailing fee 

schedule and expense reimbursement policy. 



Potesta & Associates, Inc. 
Standard Terms and Conditions 

Page 4 

 

 

Revised 12/23/2021 

14. The responsibility of POTESTA’s field representative(s) is to make observations and 

conduct field tests.  This work does not include supervision or direction of the work of the 

contractor, his employees, or agents.  The contractor should be so advised.  The contractor 

should also be advised that neither the presence of POTESTA’s field representative nor the 

observation and testing by POTESTA shall excuse him in any way for defects discovered 

in his work.  Any review and/or observation of the contractor’s performance by POTESTA 

does not include the contractor’s safety measures on or near the construction site.  The 

contractor will be solely and completely responsible for working conditions on the job site, 

including safety of all persons and property during performance of the work.  This 

requirement will apply continuously and not be limited to normal working hours.  Unless 

specifically stated in POTESTA’s proposal, construction review and/or observation is not 

included in the scope of services.  As indicated in Item 13 above, POTESTA should be 

allowed to perform construction observation services; a separate proposal will be prepared 

after construction documents are available. 

 

15. Soil, rock, water and/or other samples obtained from the project site are the property of 

Client.  POTESTA will preserve such samples for no longer than ninety (90) calendar days 

after the issuance of any document that includes the data obtained from them, unless other 

arrangements are mutually agreed upon in writing.  Further storage or transfer of samples 

will be made at Client’s expense.  Should any of these samples be contaminated by 

hazardous substances or suspected hazardous substances, it is Client’s responsibility to 

select and arrange for lawful disposal procedures, that is, procedures which encompass 

removing the contaminated samples from POTESTA’s custody and transporting them to a 

disposal site.  Client is advised that, in all cases, prudence and good judgment should be 

applied in selecting and arranging for lawful disposal procedures.  Due to the risks to which 

POTESTA is exposed, Client agrees to waive any claim against POTESTA, and to defend, 

indemnify and hold POTESTA harmless from any claim or liability for injury or loss 

arising from POTESTA’s containing, labeling, transporting, testing, storing or other 

handling of contaminated samples.  Client also agrees to compensate POTESTA for any 

time spent and expenses incurred by POTESTA in defense of any such claim, with such 

compensation to be based upon POTESTA’s prevailing fee schedule and expense 

reimbursement policy. 

 

16. Unless otherwise agreed, Client or Owner will furnish right-of-entry on the land and/or 

facilities for POTESTA to make the planned borings and other explorations and perform 

necessary sampling.  POTESTA will take reasonable precautions to minimize damage to 

said land or facilities from use of POTESTA’s equipment and operations.  If Client or 

Owner desires POTESTA to restore the land or facilities to their former condition, this will 

be accomplished at the expense of the Client or Owner. 

 

17. In the execution of Client’s work, POTESTA will take reasonable precautions to avoid 

damage or injury to subterranean structures or utilities.  The Client and Owner agree to 



Potesta & Associates, Inc. 
Standard Terms and Conditions 

Page 5 

 

 

Revised 12/23/2021 

hold POTESTA harmless for any damages to subterranean structures or utilities which are 

not called to POTESTA’s attention, or are not correctly shown on the plans furnished. 

 

18. Client agrees to advise POTESTA about the presence of any known hazardous substances 

or any known condition(s) existing in, on, or near the site presenting a potential danger to 

human health or the environment.  If during performance of services, any unforeseen 

hazardous substances or other unforeseen conditions or occurrences, in, on, or near the site 

presenting a potential danger to human health or the environment are encountered which, 

in the judgment of POTESTA, significantly affect or may affect the services or the 

recommended scope of services, POTESTA will promptly notify Client thereof.  

Subsequent to that notification, Client and POTESTA agree to pursue one of the following 

options: 

 

a. If practicable, in the judgment of POTESTA, the original scope of services will be 

completed in accordance with the procedures originally intended in POTESTA’s 

proposal for services. 

 

b. The scope of services will be modified and the estimate of charges revised to 

include study of the previously unforeseen conditions or occurrences, such revision 

to be in writing and signed by the parties and incorporated therein. 

 

c. The services for the work in POTESTA’s proposal will be terminated, effective on 

the date specified in writing by POTESTA, and POTESTA shall recover any extra 

charges associated with the previously unforeseen conditions or occurrences, as 

well as any charges up to such date for the originally proposed services. 

 

19. Neither the Client nor POTESTA may delegate, assign, sublet or transfer their duties or 

interest, as described in the Standard Terms and Conditions and accompanying proposal, 

without the written consent of the other party.  Unless stated otherwise, POTESTA’s 

proposal is firm for 90 days. 

 

20. In the event that a dispute should arise relating to the performance of the services to be 

provided under the Standard Terms and Conditions and the proposal, it is agreed that the 

dispute shall be mediated.  Should mediation fail and litigation result,  it is agreed that the 

prevailing party shall be entitled to recover all reasonable costs incurred in the defense of 

the claim, including staff time, court costs, attorney’s fees, and other claim-related 

expenses. 

 

21. The law of the State of West Virginia will govern the validity of this Agreement, its 

interpretation and performance, and remedies for contract breach or any other claims 

related to this Agreement.  All legal proceedings shall be filed in Kanawha County, West 

Virginia. 

 



Potesta & Associates, Inc. 
Standard Terms and Conditions 

Page 6 

 

 

Revised 12/23/2021 

22. POTESTA may submit to Client an opinion of the probable cost required to construct work.  

POTESTA is not a construction cost estimator or construction contractor, nor should 

POTESTA’s rendering an opinion of probable construction costs be considered equivalent 

to the nature and extent of service a construction cost estimator or construction contractor 

would provide.  POTESTA’s opinion will be based solely upon their own experience with 

construction.  This requires POTESTA to make a number of assumptions as to actual 

conditions that will be encountered on site; the specific decisions of other design 

professionals; the means and methods of construction the contractor will employ; the cost 

and extent of labor, equipment and materials the contractor will employ; contractor’s 

techniques in determining prices and market conditions at the time, and other factors over 

which POTESTA has no control.  Given the assumptions which must be made, POTESTA 

cannot guarantee the accuracy of their opinions of cost, andCin recognition of that 

factCClient waives any claim against POTESTA relative to the accuracy of POTESTA’s 

opinion of probable cost. 

 

23. Client or POTESTA may terminate this Agreement upon fourteen (14) days’ written notice 

to the other for reasons included in the notice.  In the event such termination becomes 

necessary, the party effecting termination shall so notify the other party in writing, and 

termination will become effective fourteen (14) calendar days after receipt of the 

termination notice.  Irrespective of which party shall effect termination or the cause 

therefore, Client shall within thirty (30) calendar days of termination remunerate 

POTESTA for services rendered and costs incurred, in accordance with POTESTA’s 

prevailing fee schedule and expense reimbursement policy.  Services shall include those 

rendered up to the time of termination, as well as those associated with termination itself, 

such as demobilizing, modifying schedules, reassigning personnel, and so on.  Costs shall 

include those incurred up to the time of termination, as well as those associated with 

termination and post-termination activities, such as demobilization, decontaminating 

and/or disposing of equipment, disposal and replacement of contaminated consumables, 

and so on. 

 

24. Client shall not be liable to POTESTA and POTESTA shall not be liable to Client for any 

consequential damages incurred by either due to the fault of the other, regardless of the 

nature of this fault, or whether it was committed by the Client or POTESTA, their 

employees, agents or subcontractors.  Consequential damages include, but are not limited 

to, loss of use and loss of profit. 

 

25. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all provisions of this 

Agreement allocating responsibility or liability between Client and POTESTA shall 

survive the completion of the services hereunder and the termination of this Agreement. 

 

26. POTESTA shall indicate to Client the information needed for rendering of services 

hereunder, and Client shall provide to POTESTA such information as is available to Client.  

Client recognizes that it is not possible for POTESTA to assure the sufficiency of such 



Potesta & Associates, Inc. 
Standard Terms and Conditions 

Page 7 

 

 

Revised 12/23/2021 

information, either because it is not possible to do so, or because of errors or omissions 

which may have occurred in assembling the information.  Accordingly, Client waives any 

claim against POTESTA, and agrees to defend, indemnify and hold POTESTA harmless 

from any claim or liability for injury or loss allegedly arising from errors, omissions, or 

inaccuracies in documents or other information provided to POTESTA by Client.  Further, 

Client agrees to compensate POTESTA for any time spent or expenses incurred by 

POTESTA in defense of any such claim, with such compensation to be based upon 

POTESTA’s prevailing fee schedule and expense reimbursement policy. 

 

27. This Agreement shall not create any rights or benefits to parties other than Client or 

POTESTA.  No third-party shall have the right to rely on POTESTA’s opinions rendered 

in connection with POTESTA’s services without POTESTA’s written consent and the 

third-party’s agreement to be bound to the same terms and conditions as Client. 

 

28. If, for any reason, any one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement are held 

to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality or 

unenforceability shall not affect any other provision herein, and this Agreement shall be 

construed as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision had not been contained 

herein. 

 

29. For engagements that we accept for other than regular clients, our normal practice is to 

require a retainer or security deposit in advance of our performing any significant services.  

On occasion, such a deposit is required at a later time due to payment irregularities.  The 

engagement letter will state whether an advance has been required before undertaking a 

particular representation. 

 

30. POTESTA will not have any obligation to issue a report or other document, or 

communicate our research, analyses, or conclusions, and will not have any obligation to 

appear for or provide written or oral testimony or evidence at trial, deposition or elsewhere, 

until Client’s account is paid in full.  POTESTA will have no liability to the Client, or any 

other person, by reason of not issuing a report, appearing for, and/or providing testimony 

or other evidence because of the Client’s failure to pay all amounts due POTESTA, and 

the Client agrees to indemnify POTESTA against any such liability. 

 

31. CERTIFICATIONS 

 

31.1 For purposes of this Agreement, “certification” means to state or declare a 

professional opinion based on the standard of performance set forth in Item 2 above. 

 

31.2 POTESTA shall not be required to execute certificates that would (i) result in 

POTESTA having to certify, guarantee or warrant the existence of conditions 

whose existence POTESTA cannot reasonably ascertain under the existing 

Services; (ii) require knowledge, services or responsibilities beyond the Services; 



Potesta & Associates, Inc. 
Standard Terms and Conditions 

Page 8 

 

 

Revised 12/23/2021 

or (iii) require POTESTA to make a certification that would exceed what may 

reasonably be expected from firms of similar experience and expertise providing 

services of a similar nature.  In addition, Client agrees not to make resolution of 

any dispute with POTESTA or payment of any amount due to POTESTA in any 

way contingent upon POTESTA executing such certificate. 

 

31.3 A professional’s certification in no way relieves other parties from meeting their 

respective requirements imposed by contract or other means, including commonly 

accepted industry standards and practices.  If required as a part of its Services, 

POTESTA will provide a written report stating whether, in POTESTA’s 

professional opinion and based on periodic site visits, the construction work 

complies generally with the Contract Documents. 



Rev. 12/23/21 

POTESTA & ASSOCIATES, INC. 

 

2022 RATE SCHEDULE 
 

Principal ............................................................................................................................ $280/hour 

Chief Engineer/Scientist ........................................................................................ $120 - $235/hour 

Senior Engineer/Scientist ......................................................................................... $75 - $200/hour 

Staff Engineer/Scientist ........................................................................................... $50 - $130/hour 

Engineer/Scientist ...................................................................................................... $45 - $95/hour 

Professional Surveyor .............................................................................................. $70 - $135/hour 

Senior Technician ...................................................................................................... $45 - $95/hour 

Technician .................................................................................................................. $30 - $65/hour 

Two-Man Survey Crew..................................................................................................... $120/hour 

Three-Man Survey Crew................................................................................................... $165/hour 

Senior CADD Designer ........................................................................................... $60 - $115/hour 

CADD Designer ......................................................................................................... $40 - $90/hour 

Clerical Support ....................................................................................................... $40 - $110/hour 

 

(Any changes in hourly rates will be made on January 1 of each year.) 

 

NOTE: Engineer/Scientist includes engineer, scientist, technical designers, engineering associates, planners, health 

and safety specialists, and information technologists. 

 

 



Per Unit Day Week1

1-Point Proctor Kit N/A $20.00 $75.00

12' Motorized Boat (includes fuel) N/A $300.00 $700.00
16' Motorized Boat (includes fuel) N/A $500.00 $2,000.00
2" Soak Ease Absorbent Tubes $11.00 N/A N/A
22"x34" Internal Plots $0.75 N/A N/A
24"x36" Ammonia Mylar $2.50 N/A N/A

24"x36" Internal Plots $0.75 N/A N/A
30"x42" Internal Plots $1.15 N/A N/A
36"x48" Internal Plots $2.10 N/A N/A
4" Soak Ease Absorbent Tubes $12.50 N/A N/A
4-Gas Meter N/A $75.00 $250.00

Air Meter (Concrete) N/A $25.00 N/A

Air Purifying Respirator with Cartridges N/A $25.00 N/A
Air Velocity Meter N/A $50.00 $150.00

Asbestos Sampling Equipment N/A $20.00 $60.00
Automated Composite Sampler N/A $95.00 $350.00
Bladder Pump with Controller and Compressor N/A $200.00 $700.00

Bomb Water Sampler N/A $25.00 $75.00
Camcorder N/A $50.00 $200.00

Chlorine Meter N/A $25.00 $75.00
Company Vehicles - Car (includes fuel) N/A $155.00 $620.00
Company Vehicles - Truck/Van/SUV (includes fuel) N/A $175.00 $765.00

Company Vehicles - Truck/Van/SUV (includes fuel) 
with Trailer

N/A $205.00 $1,025.00

Concrete Testing Equipment (slump, cone, temperature, 
wheelbarrow-excludes air meter)

N/A $25.00 N/A

Cone Penetrometer N/A $75.00 N/A

CORMIX/CorHyd Software Utilization (per run) $300.00 N/A N/A
Data Loggers (DO Study) $150.00 N/A N/A
Depth and Velocity Flow Meter N/A $80.00 N/A

DO Meter N/A $25.00 $75.00
DO Meter with Stirrer N/A $50.00 $100.00
Electro Fishing Equipment N/A $100.00 $350.00
Field Data Interface Unit (for Data Loggers) N/A $50.00 N/A
Fish Rearing (per Tank) N/A $5.00 N/A

Flow Cell for Water Quality Meter N/A $20.00 $50.00
Generator N/A $30.00 $120.00
Hach Hydrometer N/A $85.00 N/A
Hand Auger N/A $10.00 $30.00
Handheld GPS N/A $30.00 N/A

Inclinometer N/A $500.00 N/A
Interface Probe N/A $55.00 $120.00
Internal Color Copies $1.00 N/A N/A
Kemmerer Water Sampler N/A $25.00 $75.00

POTESTA & ASSOCIATES, INC.

Description
Rate

FIELD EQUIPMENT RENTAL RATE SHEET

Rev. 12/28/21 Page 1 of 3



Per Unit Day Week
1Description

Rate

Laser Range Finder N/A $20.00 N/A
Level Loggers N/A $50.00 $200.00
Level Loggers (Reader) N/A $50.00 N/A
Lodging N/A $90.00 N/A
Low-Flow DC Purge Pump with Controller N/A $75.00 $300.00

Manhole Penetration Camera N/A $3.00 $15.00
Manual Direct-Push Sampler N/A $50.00 $200.00
Microscopic Evaluation Laboratory Supplies $5.00 N/A N/A
Nets/Aquatic Samplers/Miscellaneous Equipment N/A $50.00 $150.00
Nuclear Gauge N/A $60.00 $200.00

Opacity Kit N/A $10.00 N/A
Other Cost + 12% Cost + 12% N/A
Other Boat Rental Cost + 12% Cost + 12% Cost + 12%
Oversize Bluelines $2.40 N/A N/A
Ponar Sampler N/A $25.00 $75.00

Petroleum Soil Field Test Kit $35.00 N/A N/A
PH/Temperature/Conductivity Meter N/A $75.00 $250.00

pH/Temperature/Conductivity Meter/DO/ORP Meter N/A $125.00 $500.00
PID/FID N/A $100.00 $400.00

Pressure Gauges N/A N/A $50.00
PVC Bailer (2") N/A $5.00 N/A
PVC Bailer (3") N/A $10.00 N/A

Sample Storage (Monthly) $30.00 N/A N/A
Sludge Sampler N/A $20.00 $75.00

Small Row Boat N/A $125.00 $300.00
Soil Resistivity Meter N/A $50.00 $150.00
Speedy Moisture Gauge N/A $25.00 N/A
State Change Logger N/A N/A $100.00

State Change Reader N/A $50.00 N/A
Sub-Centimeter GPS Equipment N/A $400.00 N/A
Sub-Meter GPS Unit N/A $150.00 $500.00

Surface Velocity Meter (SVR) N/A $90.00 N/A

Survey Equipment (excludes GPS) N/A $65.00 N/A
Temperature Loggers N/A $10.00 $35.00
Temperature Loggers (Reader) N/A $50.00 N/A
Treatability Study Equipment N/A $200.00 $800.00
Turbidity Meter N/A $25.00 $75.00

Vehicle Mileage (if daily rates are not used) IRS Rate + 12% N/A N/A
Water Level Indicator N/A $35.00 $75.00
Whale Pump System N/A $35.00 $100.00

1    Weekly rental rate implies calendar week.

(Any changes in rates will be made January 1 of each year.)

Rev. 12/28/21 Page 2 of 3



Per Unit Day

55-Gallon Steel Drum $75.00 N/A

Asbestos Sampling Supplies N/A $20.00

Forms, Field Notebooks, Nitrile Gloves, Plastic Bags, Etc.

Benthic Survey Supplies (Per Site Per Day) $35.00 N/A

Forms, Containers, Ethyl Alcohol, Nitrile Gloves, Flagging, 

Distilled Water, Decon Supplies, Marking Utensils, Plastic 

Bags
Bentonite (50 lb. Bag) $15.00 N/A

Bladder Pump Sampling Supplies (Bladders, Grab Plates, 

Tubing) - Per Well

$50.00 N/A

Discharge Sampling Supplies N/A $35.00

Forms, Field Notebooks, Nitrile Gloves, Ice, Distilled 

Water, Decon Supplies, Plastic Bags, Etc.

Disposable Bailers 3' (1.5" diameter) $8.00 N/A

Disposable Bailers 3' (0.75" diameter) $5.00 N/A

Disposable Bailers 7' (1.5" diameter) $12.50 N/A

Fish Survey Supplies (Per Site Per Day) $35.00 N/A

Buckets, Waders, Bottles, Formalin, Ethyl Alcohol, Forms, 

Marking Utensils, Plastic Bags

Groundwater Sampling Supplies N/A $35.00

Forms, Field Notebooks, Nitrile Gloves, Ice, Distilled 

Water, Decon Supplies, Plastic Bags, Etc.

GW Filters $17.50 N/A

HGM Stream Assessment Supplies N/A $25.00

Tape, Clinometer, Densiometer, Diameter Tape, Flagging, 

Quadrat, Etc.

Soil Sampling Supplies N/A $35.00

Forms, Field Notebooks, Nitrile Gloves, Ice, Distilled 

Water, Decon Supplies, Plastic Bags, Etc.

Stream Sampling Supplies N/A $35.00

Forms, Field Notebooks, Nitrile Gloves, Ice, Distilled 

Water, Decon Supplies, Plastic Bags, Etc.

Stream Delineation Supplies N/A $20.00

Hip Chain, Clinometer, Flagging, Forms, Etc.

Survey Supplies N/A $25.00

Hubs, Stakes, Flagging, Iron Pins, Monuments, Marking 

Paint, Traffic Control

Wetland Delineation Supplies N/A $20.00

Flagging, Forms, Reference Materials, Plastic Bags, Etc.

Other Cost + 12% N/A
(Any changes in rates will be made January 1 of each year.)

Rate

FIELD SUPPLY RATE SHEET
POTESTA & ASSOCIATES, INC.

Description

Rev. 12/28/21 Page 3 of 3



 

Board of Supervisors  Action Item C-1 – C-17 
137 Highland Drive Presenter: Administrator 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

                     Meeting: 9/12/22         6:00 PM 
 

 

 

County Administrator Reports & Requests 
 

REPORTS 
 

1. Fire & EMS Departments – ARPA Funds - $1,000 Per Month Allocation……...C-1 
 

2. VACo 2022 Annual Conference, Richmond Convention Center, November                                                       
13-15, 2022……………………………………………………..…………………………C-2 
 

3. VACo Region 12 & 13 Legislative Meeting - Russell County Gov’t Center 
August 23, 2022 – 1 P.M. to 3 P.M…………………………………………………….C-3 
 

4. Finney Disposal Site Proposed Location .………………………………………….C-4 
 

5. APA Court System Audit – RC Clerk of Circuit Court…………………………….C-5 
 

REQUESTS 
 

6. VDOT Dante Depot Renovation Contract……………………………………………C-6 
 

7. DHCD Dante Regional Sewer Line Extension Agreement………………………..C-7 
 

8. DCJS Victim Witness Program Grant - $70,000…………………………………….C-8 
 

9. Voter Registration – ICE Tabulator - $8,625…………………………………………C-9 
 

10. VDOT Resolution – Highway System – Project 7058-097-105, G302, G303…..C-10 
 

11. CSA Supplement Allocation Request - $11,141.09………………………………..C-11 
 

12. School Board Reversion Funds Correction - $356,522.13…………………..…...C-12 
 

13. National Opioids Settlement Payment - $43,265.96……………………………….C-13 
 

14. RC Deputy Emergency Management Coordinator..……………………………….C-14 
 

15. RC Tourism Coordinator……………………………………………………………….C-15 
 

16. RC Planning Commission Plat………………………………………………………..C-16 
 

17. RC Library Travel Requests – Kelly McBride – Belinda Levy Association                                                     
for Rural & Small Libraries Conference 9/14 - 9/17 & Library of Virginia                                            
Meeting, Richmond 9/22 – 9/23………………………………………………………..C-17 
 
 
 

 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

http://www.russellcountyva.us/
http://www.russellcountyva.us/


From: lonzo.lester russellcountyva.us
To: lou.wallace russellcountyva.us; Lou Wallace; Tim Lovelace; carl.rhea russellcountyva.us; deaton@cableplus.tv; david.eaton

russellcountyva.us; steve.breeding russellcountyva.us; sbreeding@bvu.net; oris.christian russellcountyva.us; rebecca.dye
russellcountyva.us

Cc: vicki.porter russellcountyva.us; loretta.vance russellcountyva.us
Subject: Reminder: 2022 VACo Annual Conference Registration Form
Date: Tuesday, July 5, 2022 12:47:00 PM

BOS Members – FYI.
 

From: Virginia Association of Counties <gharter@vaco.org> 
Sent: Tuesday, July 5, 2022 11:08 AM
To: lonzo.lester russellcountyva.us <lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us>
Subject: Reminder: 2022 VACo Annual Conference Registration Form
 
Register for VACo's Premier Event Today!

The 2022 VACo Annual Conference
 

mailto:lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us
mailto:Lou.wallace@russellcountyva.us
mailto:design_printers@email.com
mailto:tlovelace@russell.k12.va.us
mailto:carl.rhea@russellcountyva.us
mailto:deaton@cableplus.tv
mailto:david.eaton@russellcountyva.us
mailto:david.eaton@russellcountyva.us
mailto:steve.breeding@russellcountyva.us
mailto:sbreeding@bvu.net
mailto:oris.christian@russellcountyva.us
mailto:rebecca.dye@russellcountyva.us
mailto:rebecca.dye@russellcountyva.us
mailto:vicki.porter@russellcountyva.us
mailto:loretta.vance@russellcountyva.us
Tracy
Highlight



 

VACo's Premier Event | November 13-15

Greater Richmond Convention Center
 

 

Dear VACo Members:

 

As VACo's biggest event of the year, the Annual Conference is a must for every
Virginia County Supervisor and county staff member. Drawing in hundreds of
officials, dozens of speakers, and a host of vendors and exhibitors, VACo's Annual
Conference provides opportunities to learn from others, grow in knowledge, and
improve skills.



 

The Annual Conference includes:



·     General Sessions featuring elected officials, local leaders and
policy/government experts discussing and analyzing issues

 

·     Breakout Sessions designed to educate and enlighten

 

·     Exhibit Hall featuring companies and organizations showcasing
products and services unique to the needs of county government

 

·     Hands-on workshops

 

·     VACo's Annual Business Meeting where the Legislative Program is
adopted and the Board of Directors is elected for the upcoming year    

 

·     Steering Committee Meetings

 

·     Multiple team-building and networking opportunities

 

·     And Much More 

 

Annual Conference Registration Form | Online Conference Registration

 

 

VACo 2022 and Beyond

 

This year’s theme is "Counties Governing the New
Normal." Counties are returning to the everyday but
with some changes.

 

https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001U5U0TxACr0vB9P2E3-BhzdDuaL0K6Dsy2cq0K6oTpJpkHsvBsGUv7xkWB16EjOB7lXgP4VxuHPE7FLJ8KuYPvIZ1FBFnTuGBM1kSgirPxIRNszuXNznFboq91lXjqABgTm-6zUzrn_xZFwTQ_TYwi4DAcEbkQqbsL1ZkxgcBI6VP_O_GtmVvobq1bKFIzfbqNWTZIZDObttgDO3lvMfw1oVa8PTI82skP4INhnvKlDM=&c=n7XsIbTDEYCjxbEITsapJhhUbeTHl0BsIiJ3fHpMTYQjw-oBu5_vig==&ch=HSasy_CkwIuTmdNcngCDkft6EgqwXDsTSh5nhq7nMtoCGajaHO0JIA==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001U5U0TxACr0vB9P2E3-BhzdDuaL0K6Dsy2cq0K6oTpJpkHsvBsGUv772FQApJRe1KjM-QZPDvzy7oGHORxAha2vaiQcGGvmIfeQZHkYEjABPUzwj1rdRL3JRWMImkvyCwactW7TXsZh-wGaqxPer5H8Qc4ZR1VY06TXeEWXxlCjq3dl-VDadi7qDptk-rgYugmKXkhYcYOzJtfKqf3Doiq4VIZvpY-E6_IGV9KrfboWc=&c=n7XsIbTDEYCjxbEITsapJhhUbeTHl0BsIiJ3fHpMTYQjw-oBu5_vig==&ch=HSasy_CkwIuTmdNcngCDkft6EgqwXDsTSh5nhq7nMtoCGajaHO0JIA==


With roughly 1,000 local government officials, state
representatives, speakers and exhibitors in
attendance, VACo’s Annual Conference is the perfect opportunity to learn and
engage with peers from across the state.

 

 

Conference Logistics

 

All attendees are required to submit a conference registration form by mail, fax or
online in order to be registered. For those new to the process, room reservations for
this year's annual conference are separate from the annual conference registration.
The room reservation form will be released at a later date.

 

·     Annual Conference Registration Form 
·     Online Conference Registration

 

Call 804.343.2507 and ask for Valerie Russell if you need more information.

 

 

VACo Contact
 
If you have questions about the annual conference registration form or room
reservations, contact Valerie Russell at vrussell@vaco.org or 804.343.2507.

 

REGISTER NOW!
 

 

Connect with us

https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001U5U0TxACr0vB9P2E3-BhzdDuaL0K6Dsy2cq0K6oTpJpkHsvBsGUv7xkWB16EjOB7VREZqd6irnbx6K-wqxfq7C9kSIk4u3RQHQLYTbYTWpc7YO3F0C3TJ2ZC_JlEe9mdI4DgWPBSPJnyM0lzvXPcer7uW4nwUhO8IQ7josSlrwY-tSEeJOEMLBi3Uv3cU4K6nl7QYASiICu0Q8lY-Bc0KBFmqKSqmvWS&c=n7XsIbTDEYCjxbEITsapJhhUbeTHl0BsIiJ3fHpMTYQjw-oBu5_vig==&ch=HSasy_CkwIuTmdNcngCDkft6EgqwXDsTSh5nhq7nMtoCGajaHO0JIA==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001U5U0TxACr0vB9P2E3-BhzdDuaL0K6Dsy2cq0K6oTpJpkHsvBsGUv7xkWB16EjOB7lXgP4VxuHPE7FLJ8KuYPvIZ1FBFnTuGBM1kSgirPxIRNszuXNznFboq91lXjqABgTm-6zUzrn_xZFwTQ_TYwi4DAcEbkQqbsL1ZkxgcBI6VP_O_GtmVvobq1bKFIzfbqNWTZIZDObttgDO3lvMfw1oVa8PTI82skP4INhnvKlDM=&c=n7XsIbTDEYCjxbEITsapJhhUbeTHl0BsIiJ3fHpMTYQjw-oBu5_vig==&ch=HSasy_CkwIuTmdNcngCDkft6EgqwXDsTSh5nhq7nMtoCGajaHO0JIA==
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001U5U0TxACr0vB9P2E3-BhzdDuaL0K6Dsy2cq0K6oTpJpkHsvBsGUv772FQApJRe1KjM-QZPDvzy7oGHORxAha2vaiQcGGvmIfeQZHkYEjABPUzwj1rdRL3JRWMImkvyCwactW7TXsZh-wGaqxPer5H8Qc4ZR1VY06TXeEWXxlCjq3dl-VDadi7qDptk-rgYugmKXkhYcYOzJtfKqf3Doiq4VIZvpY-E6_IGV9KrfboWc=&c=n7XsIbTDEYCjxbEITsapJhhUbeTHl0BsIiJ3fHpMTYQjw-oBu5_vig==&ch=HSasy_CkwIuTmdNcngCDkft6EgqwXDsTSh5nhq7nMtoCGajaHO0JIA==
mailto:vrussell@vaco.org
https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001U5U0TxACr0vB9P2E3-BhzdDuaL0K6Dsy2cq0K6oTpJpkHsvBsGUv7xkWB16EjOB7lXgP4VxuHPE7FLJ8KuYPvIZ1FBFnTuGBM1kSgirPxIRNszuXNznFboq91lXjqABgTm-6zUzrn_xZFwTQ_TYwi4DAcEbkQqbsL1ZkxgcBI6VP_O_GtmVvobq1bKFIzfbqNWTZIZDObttgDO3lvMfw1oVa8PTI82skP4INhnvKlDM=&c=n7XsIbTDEYCjxbEITsapJhhUbeTHl0BsIiJ3fHpMTYQjw-oBu5_vig==&ch=HSasy_CkwIuTmdNcngCDkft6EgqwXDsTSh5nhq7nMtoCGajaHO0JIA==


Tracy
Highlight



 

www.apa.virginia.gov | (804) 225-3350 | reports@apa.virginia.gov 
 

 

 
 July 22, 2022 
 
 
The Honorable Ann S. McReynolds  
Clerk of the Circuit Court  
County of Russell 
 
Lou Ann Wallace, Board Chairperson 
County of Russell 
 
Audit Period:  April 1, 2021, through March 31, 2022  
Court System: County of Russell 
 
 

We have audited the cash receipts and disbursements of the Clerk of the Circuit Court for this 
locality for the period noted above.  Our primary objectives were to test the accuracy of financial 
transactions recorded on the Court’s financial management system; evaluate the Court’s internal 
controls; and test its compliance with significant state laws, regulations, and policies.   
 
Management’s Responsibility 
 

Court management has responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls and 
complying with applicable laws and regulations.  Internal control is a process designed to provide 
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting, effectiveness and 
efficiency of operations, and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.  Deficiencies in internal 
controls could lead to noncompliance with laws and regulations, the loss of assets or revenues, or 
otherwise compromise the Clerk’s fiscal accountability. 

 
We noted no matters involving internal control and its operation necessary to bring to 

management’s attention. 
  

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight



   

 

Ann S McReynolds, Clerk of the Circuit Court 
Lou Ann Wallace, Board Chairperson 
July 22. 2022 
Page Two 
 
 
 

We acknowledge the cooperation extended to us by the Clerk and her staff during this 
engagement.   
  
  
  Staci Henshaw 
 AUDITOR OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 
 
 
LJH:rh 
 
 
cc: The Honorable Brian K. Patton, Chief Judge 
 Lonzo Lester, County Administrator 
 Paul F. DeLosh, Director of Judicial Services 
    Supreme Court of Virginia 
 Director, Admin and Public Records 
    Department of Accounts  
  



Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight







































































Date: 6/2/2022

UPC:  CFDA # 20.205 Locality:  

From:  

To:  

Telephone: Email:

Telephone Email: Roger.Musser@VDOT.Virginia.gov

● This Project shall be administered in accordance with VDOT's Locally Administered Projects Manual

● This is a limited funds project.  The LOCALITY shall be responsible for any additional funding in excess of $332,848

This attachment is certified and made an official attachment to this document by the parties to this agreement.

$332,848 $295,348

$287,248

$0

Total CN $384,060

$10,000$332,848 $426,060

$426,060

$332,848

Aggregate 

Allocations
Local Funds

Estimated Total Reimbursement by VDOT to Locality (Less Local Share and VDOT Expenses)

$0

$0

$299,248

$295,348

$0

Local Match

Total Estimated Cost

Total Maximum Reimbursement by VDOT to Locality (Less Local Share)

$84,812

$93,212

Project Financing

$83,212

Total RW $0

$0

$0

$10,000100%

$0

Local Funds

$0 $0

$0 $0

$0

$0$0

$0

$0 $0

$0

$0

$299,24820% $74,812

$8,100

$0

$0$0

$0

$33,600

$0

$0$0

$0 $0

$0

$8,400

$0

$0

$0

Transportation Alternatives

$0

$33,600

$0

$0

$0

$0 $0

20%

Local % Participation for 

Funds Type

$0

$0

$8,400$42,000

Local Share Amount
Funds type                 

(Choose from drop down box)

Preliminary Engineering

20%

$0 $0

$0

$0

Estimated 

Reimbursement to 

Locality                                      

(Max. Reimbursement - 

Est. VDOT Expenses)

$12,000

Estimated Locality Project Expenses

$384,060$0

$25,500

$42,000 $426,060

Maximum Reimbursement               

(Estimated Cost - Local 

Share)

Phase Estimated Project Costs

ConstructionRight of Way and Utilities Total Estimated Cost

$37,500

Project Estimates

$372,060 $388,560

Project Cost and Reimbursement

Estimated VDOT Project Expenses

$0

$0

$16,500

Preliminary Engineering

Estimated Total Project Costs

Appendix A Revision 1

Department Project Coordinator Contact Info:  

36°58’38.36”N and -82°17’55.189”W (Bunch Town Road)

Project Location ZIP+4: 24237-7192

Work 

Description: 

113499Project Number:  EN18-083-977 Russell County   (167)

Locality Address (incl ZIP+4)

137 Highland Dr

Lebanon, VA 24266-7169

The community of Dante will transform their historic railroad depot into the centerpiece of their economic revitalization efforts, providing a 

rallying point for both Dante's residents and visitors. 

Lonzo Lester   276-889-8000   lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us  

Roger Musser   276-696-3260

Project Narrative

Locality Project Manager Contact info:

36°58’38.99”N and -82°17’54.703”W (Bunch Town Road)

Locality UEI# WMRHA68SMK19

Transportation AlternativesRight of Way & Utilities

$42,000Total PE

Transportation Alternatives

$374,060 Transportation Alternatives

$10,000

Construction

● For Transportation Alternatives (TA) Projects, the LOCALITY shall maintain the Project or have it maintained in a manner satisfactory to the DEPARTMENT for its useful life and make ample 

provisions each year for such maintenance unless otherwise agreed to by the DEPARTMENT.  Failure to do so, or the sale of a TA funded improvement prior to the expectations as identified in ● In accordance with CTB policy, the Project must be under construction by September 30,2022 or the federal Transportation Alternatives (TA) funding may be subject to de-allocation.

● Any ineligible items identified throughout Project development will not be reimbursable. 

Typed or printed name of person signing

Program and Project Specific Funding Requirements

● Reimbursement for eligible expenditures shall not exceed funds allocated each year by the Commonwealth Transportation Board in the Six Year Improvement Program.

● All local funds included on this appendix have been formally committed by the local government’s board or council resolution subject to appropriation. 

Typed or printed name of person signing

and Transportation Alternatives Program Guide.

DateAuthorized VDOT Official                                                                   DateAuthorized Locality Official

● Eligible VDOT Project expenses will be recovered as follows:  80% will be deducted from the federal allocation and 20% will be deducted from reimbursement requests. 

● The DEPARTMENT will conduct all environmental studies necessary to complete an environmental document in compliance with the National Environmental Policy Act including, but not 

limited to, basic coordination for cultural resources, basic clearances for threatened and endangered species, and any necessary certifications, recertifications, and/or reevaluations.  The 

LOCALITY is responsible for tracking, implementing, and completing all environmental commitments associated with the project.  In addition, the LOCALITY is responsible for obtaining any 

water quality permits, submitting a signed EQ-555 for natural resources due diligence, conducting any required hazardous materials efforts, and submitting a signed EQ-121 for hazardous 

materials due diligence (all submittals are to be in accordance with the LAP Manual). VDOT’s estimated cost for preparing the environmental document and necessary supporting studies, 

including certifications, recertifications and/or reevaluations, will be provided to the LOCALITY and deducted from the Project funds. 

Revised:  February 1, 2019



   1 03-02/REV07-2022 

CONTRACT #:  21-21-14 

GRANTEE:  Russell County  
CFDA# 14.228 

 

 

 AGREEMENT 

 

This AGREEMENT, entered into as of this 15th day of August, 2022, by and between the Virginia 

Department of Housing and Community Development hereinafter referred to as "DHCD" and Russell 

County, Virginia hereinafter referred to as "GRANTEE." 

 

WITNESSETH 

 

WHEREAS, the Commonwealth of Virginia has been authorized to distribute and administer 

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds pursuant to the Housing and Community 

Development Act of 1974, as amended, and 

 

WHEREAS, DHCD has been authorized by the Governor of the Commonwealth of Virginia to 

distribute and administer CDBG funds in the form of Community Improvement Grants  according to 

the CDBG Program Design, and 

 

WHEREAS, the PROJECT as described in the Proposal as submitted by the GRANTEE has achieved 

a sufficiently high ranking through a competitive proposal selection system to qualify for CDBG 

funding on the basis of the CDBG Program Design, 

 

Now THEREFORE, the above-mentioned parties hereto do mutually agree as follows: 

 

1. DHCD agrees to award the GRANTEE a COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT GRANT  in an 

amount of the total allowable, eligible costs in carrying out the ACTIVITIES included in 

Products herein described not to exceed two million five hundred dollars ($2,500,000). 

 

2. DHCD agrees to provide the GRANTEE with technical assistance in setting up and carrying 

out the administration of its CDBG Grant. 

 

3. The GRANTEE will commence, carry out and complete the following Products (more 

thoroughly described in the GRANTEE'S CDBG Proposal). 

 

PROJECT TITLE: Dante Regional Sewer Line Extension 

 

OUTCOMES:  To improve the living conditions of residents living in the Dante 

and Sun communities of Russell County though the provision of 

new and improved public sewer infrastructure. 

  



   2 03-02/REV07-2022 

BENEFITS: 

   

Total Project Benefit 

617 Total Persons 364 Total LMI Persons 

240 Total Households 141 Total LMI Households 

 

Improved Public Sewer Infrastructure Benefit 

228 
Total Households— 

Improved Public Infrastructure 
134 

Total LMI Households— 

Improved Public Infrastructure 

592 
Total Persons— 

Improved Public Infrastructure 
354 

Total LMI Persons— 

Improved Public Infrastructure 

 

New Public Sewer Infrastructure Benefit 

12 
Total Households— 

New Public Infrastructure 
7 

Total LMI Households— 

New Public Infrastructure 

25 
Total Persons— 

New Public Infrastructure 
10 

Total LMI Persons— 

New Public Infrastructure 

 

 

ACTIVITIES:  1. Administration of this project in a timely and compliant manner 

 (CDBG). 
   

  2. Design and construction of approximately 1,500 LF of gravity 

 sewer line; approximately 30,850 LF of force main sewer line; one 

 (1) pump station; and associated manholes, valves, and 

 appurtenances (CDBG and non-CDBG).  

 

4.  The aforementioned PROJECT shall be carried out, and grant payments made in strict 

conformance with the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 

 

5. The GRANTEE will use the lesser of (1) the amount specified above, or (2) if, at total PROJECT 

completion, there are cost underruns or project savings, these costs shall revert to DHCD and 

other funding sources committed to the PROJECT in the CIG proposal on a proportional basis, 

unless superseded by other federal program requirements.  In no case will leveraged funds be 

returned beyond that amount which would have changed the PROJECT'S ability to be funded 

initially.  

 

6. The GRANTEE will initiate the ACTIVITIES required by the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

beginning August 15, 2022, unless grant Special Conditions require additional action on 

specified PRODUCT(S) before proceeding with that PRODUCT(S).  In such instances the 

GRANTEE will initiate action relative to removal of the Special Conditions beginning with the 

execution of this AGREEMENT. 

  



   3 03-02/REV07-2022 

7. The GRANTEE shall complete the work as described in the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

within 24 months of the execution of this AGREEMENT, or more specifically on or before 

August 14, 2024. If the ACTIVITIES are not completed by that date all CIG funding and this 

AGREEMENT shall be terminated and the Grantee shall return all unexpended funds, unless 

an amendment to the CONTRACT DOCUMENT provides otherwise.  

 

8. DHCD agrees to make payment to the GRANTEE upon receipt of a properly completed and 

signed invoice. Requests for Payment may be made, allowing approximately thirty days to 

receive the funds. Funds are to be immediately disbursed by the GRANTEE and shall not be 

deposited in an interest-bearing account.  

9. The term CONTRACT DOCUMENTS means the following documents which are a part of this 

AGREEMENT and are incorporated by reference herein as if set out in full.  

A. GRANTEE'S CDBG Proposal (including any revisions); 

B. CDBG AGREEMENT; 

C. SPECIAL CONDITIONS; 

D. GENERAL CONDITIONS; 

E. ASSURANCES; 

F. AMENDMENTS (none as of the date this Agreement was signed); 

G. GRANT MANAGEMENT MANUAL (Those items specified as being required); 

H. CONTRACT NEGOTIATION RECORD; 

I. PROJECT MANAGEMENT PLAN (including any revisions); 

J. PROGRAM INCOME PLAN (if required);  

K. ANY PROJECT SPECIFIC PLAN AND/OR PROGRAM DESIGN; and 

L. LAST APPROVED BUDGET. 

  



   4 03-02/REV07-2022 

In witness whereof, the parties hereto have executed or caused to be executed by their duly authorized 

official this AGREEMENT in duplicate, each copy of which will be deemed an original.  

 

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, 

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

 

 

BY:     DATE:      

 Sandra Powell, Sr. Deputy Director  

 Division and Community Development and Housing 

 

 

City of Richmond,  

Commonwealth of Virginia 

 

I do certify that Sandra Powell personally appeared before me and made oath that she is the Senior 

Deputy Director of the Department of Housing and Community Development and that she is duly 

authorized to execute the foregoing document.  

 

My commission expires:  ________________________. 

 

Given under my hand this ______day of ____________, 2022. 

 

________________________________     

Notary Public Registration Number 

 

 

RUSSELL COUNTY 

 

 

BY:     DATE:      

 Lou Wallace, Chair 

 

 

County of Russell, 

Commonwealth of Virginia 

 

I do certify that Lou Wallace personally appeared before me and made oath that she is Chair of the 

Russell County Board of Supervisors and that she is duly authorized to execute the foregoing 

document. 

 

My commission expires:  ________________________. 

 

Given under my hand this ______day of ____________, 2022. 

 

________________________________     

Notary Public Registration Number 
   



   5 03-02/REV07-2022 

SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

1. Upon execution of this contract, the Associate Director of the Program Administration and 

Assistance Office is authorized to approve budgets, budget revisions, contract extensions, and 

contract closeouts. 

2. A total of $300,000 in leverage funds is committed to this project by the GRANTEE. Sources of 

funds are as follows: 

    FY 22 SWVA Water/Wastewater  $150,000 

    Russell County (Local)    $150,000 

 These funds shall be expended prior to or in proportion to CDBG Funds within the budget, per 

activity. If additional leverage funds are committed to the project beyond those outlined above, the 

required leverage will remain at the originally approved amount. Documentation of the expenditure 

of these funds shall be maintained by the Grantee and reported to DHCD at the time of compliance 

reviews and request for final payment. 

4. DHCD expects remittance requests for each CDBG-funded budget activity to be submitted at least 

quarterly. All remittance requests must be submitted via CAMS and shall be accompanied at least 

by a cover memorandum and copies of relevant invoices and checks. Remittances for administration 

expenses will be accepted and processed only on a pay-for-performance basis. The benchmarks to 

be used in determining eligibility for payment will be negotiated between the GRANTEE and the 

assigned Community Development Specialist. The benchmarks, compensation, and their schedule 

shall be considered as an ATTACHMENT to this CONTRACT. The GRANTEE must include a 

comparable compensation process for making payments to contractual service providers, and that 

process with benchmarks and a compensation schedule must be included in contracts with service 

providers. 

5. All grant-related work shall occur using a management team concept and representing all 

stakeholders, including but not limited to neighborhood residents (sparkplugs), the engineer and/or 

architect, the rehab specialist, the housing program administrator, the grant administrator, the Chief 

Executive, the Director of Public Works, and the local Planner, as appropriate. 

6. The Project Management Team shall meet regularly (at least monthly) to properly monitor the 

Project’s progress. The Team will review its Project Management Plan to determine if the project is 

being implemented according to the projected plan. The plan will be updated promptly in 

recognition of a deviation from projections and DHCD will be notified.   

7. DHCD reserves the right to end funding at any point should the project prove nonviable. This 

includes, but may not be limited to, lack of progress in conformance with the approved Project 

Management Plan. 

8. Monthly progress reports must be submitted to DHCD. These reports must document CDBG and 

non-CDBG funds expended and obligated to date and the actions taken on key benchmarks that 

support the successful completion of the project.  

9. DHCD reserves the right to receive additional documentation pertaining to construction, 

professional service, non-professional service or other contracts obligating CDBG funds prior to 

approving drawdown requests. 



   6 03-02/REV07-2022 

10. Throughout the life of the project, the GRANTEE will ensure that the appropriate staff attends all 

required DHCD training, including the annual Grant Management Workshop. Depending upon the 

training being offered, the individuals who must attend may include the grant manager, the 

rehabilitation specialist, the federal labor standards contract compliance officer and/or the financial 

manager. 

11. As the Centralized Application and Management System (CAMS) is implemented, at a minimum, 

the following must be observed:  

a. The only CAMS User Role that a consultant or PDC staff may be assigned on the grantee’s 

Manage Staff and/or Project pages is “Consultant.” While documents may be prepared and 

uploaded into CAMS by a “Consultant,” only the grantee can submit them.  

b. Each file uploaded may be no larger than 20 to 25 megabytes, depending upon the 

GRANTNEE’s connection. Multiple files can be compressed (zip) into one file. Executed 

documents must be scanned in their entirety and as a single document.   

c. The original executed GRANT AGREEMENT must be mailed or scanned in its entirety to 

DHCD, along with the original Certification of Signatures and Address. Upon receipt of the 

AGREEMENT, it will be signed by DHCD’s Senior Deputy Director. DHCD will upload the 

executed AGREEMENT into CAMS. The GRANTEE must download a copy and place it into 

the official grant project files. 

d. After the AGREEMENT has been executed, the GRANTEE must submit the project budget 

into CAMS. 

e. After it has been signed by all required signatories except for the Community Development 

Specialist, the Project Management Plan, including the timeline, must be mailed to DHCD. 

The Plan will be signed by the Community Development Specialist and uploaded into CAMS. 

f. All correspondence, including contract amendment and budget revision requests, must be 

uploaded into “Reports & Documents” in CAMS as correspondence documents.  

g. All ACTIVITIES required by this contract must be uploaded into “Reports & Documents” in 

CAMS as contract documents. 

h. All remittance requests must be submitted through “Remittance” in CAMS. If products are 

submitted in “Reports & Documents” at the same time as a remittance request, the explanation 

text box at the bottom of the Remittances screen must note this fact. 

i. The following pre-contract activity documents must be scanned in its entirety and as a single 

document and uploaded into “Reports & Documents” in CAMS as contract documents: 

Published Combined Notice of FONSI & NOI-RROF advertisement; Executed Request for 

Release of Funds and Certification; Executed Fair Housing Certification; Executed Program 

Income Plan, including the list of appointed Oversight Board members, if appropriate; 

Executed Program Design(s), including Oversight Board by-laws, if appropriate; Executed 

Industry Agreements; and Executed Certification of Signatures and Address. 

j. All annual financial audit reports as required by this AGREEMENT shall be submitted 

through CAMS.  



   7 03-02/REV07-2022 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 

1. DEFINITIONS - Whenever used in the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS the following terms when 

written in all capital letters shall have the meanings indicated and shall be applicable to both the 

singular and plural thereof: 

A. AMENDMENT - A formal addition or modification to the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

which has been approved in writing by both parties, and which affects the scope, objectives 

or completion date of the PROJECT, or which affects the manner in which the PROJECT is 

to be carried out.  

B. APPLICANT - The entity which made the proposal for COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT 

GRANT funding and accepted responsibility for assuring compliance and performance of all 

conditions.  

C. ASSURANCES - The ASSURANCES which are attached to this document.  

D. COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT GRANT (CIG) - The funds, the PROJECT and 

PRODUCTS to be funded, and all conditions, laws and regulations affecting administration 

of funds currently in effect or as subsequently amended, and provided by DHCD to the 

GRANTEE from Community Development Block Grant funds allocated by the U.S. 

Department of Housing and Urban Development.  

E. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS - The legal agreement between DHCD and the GRANTEE 

including the AGREEMENT and all documents referenced in paragraph 9 thereof.  

F. GRANTEE – The entity which is the recipient of CIG funds and as such must comply with 

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 

G. MANUAL - The Community Improvement Grant Management Manual, which contains 

required forms and instructions for the administration of CIG's and provides required and 

non-required procedures for project management.  

H. PRODUCT – A PROJECT activity which constitutes a specific portion of the PROJECT, and 

as such is covered by its own budget. 

I. PROJECT - The physical activities undertaken to meet the overall stated objective for which 

CIG funding is utilized.  

J. PROJECT MANAGEMENT PLAN - A plan prepared by the Grantee, which identifies roles, 

responsibilities, method of contract administration and oversight, key dates for task 

implementation and completion, analysis of potential problems and management 

organization. 

K. WORK - All labor, equipment and materials necessary to produce the construction of the 

PROJECT as required by the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.  

L. WRITTEN NOTICE - Any notice from one party to the AGREEMENT to the other signed 

by an authorized official which transmits binding statements of fact or condition and is 

delivered to the appropriate authorized official either in person or through the United States 

mail.  



   8 03-02/REV07-2022 

2. ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES - The GRANTEE shall perform all contracted WORK and 

administer all grant funds and activities in conformance with the general terms and special 

conditions set forth where required in DHCD's MANUAL, and any WRITTEN NOTICES from 

DHCD.  

3. ACCOUNTING RECORDS - The GRANTEE shall establish and maintain separate accounts within 

its existing accounting system or set up accounts independently which are in conformity with the 

requirements of the Code of Federal Regulations (24 CFR Part 85), the DHCD MANUAL 

requirements and any WRITTEN NOTICES from DHCD. The GRANTEE shall record in its 

accounting system all Grant payments received by it pursuant to this Grant and all other funds 

provided for, accruing to, or otherwise received on account of the Grant.  

 All costs, including paid services contributed by the GRANTEE or others, charged to the Grant 

shall be supported by properly executed payrolls, time records, invoices, contracts, or vouchers 

evidencing in proper detail the nature and propriety of the charges. All checks, payrolls, invoices, 

contracts, vouchers, orders, or other accounting documents pertaining in whole or in part to the 

Grant shall be clearly identified, readily accessible, and separate and distinct from all other such 

documents. Such documents shall reside at the offices of the GRANTEE locality.  

4. COSTS INCURRED PRIOR TO GRANT AGREEMENT EXECUTION - No costs incurred prior 

to the execution of the AGREEMENT shall be eligible for reimbursement with Grant funds, unless 

such incurred costs are authorized in writing by DHCD.  

5. PROGRAM BUDGET - The GRANTEE shall carry out activities and incur costs only in 

conformance with the latest approved budget for the Grant and subject to the provisions of these 

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. The budget may be revised through Administrative Procedures 

detailed in the MANUAL, but no such budget or revision shall be effective unless and until the 

Department shall have approved the same in writing or as indicated in item 16 of these General 

Conditions.  

6. RECORDS – The GRANTEE shall maintain accurate, complete and orderly documentation of 

CDBG-funded activities in conformance with the provisions of these CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

and the MANUAL. Records shall be readily accessible to DHCD, appropriate State and Federal 

agencies, or any of their duly authorized representatives, and the general public during the course 

of the project.   The records shall remain intact and accessible for ten (10) years from the day of 

DHCD’s acceptance of the final audit or financial statements.   If any litigation claim or audit is 

started before the expiration of the ten (10) year period, the records shall be retained until such 

action is resolved. Notwithstanding, records of any nonexpendable property must be retained for a 

ten (10) year period following final disposition. 

 

7. REPORTS - The GRANTEE shall furnish, regularly and in such form as DHCD may require, 

reports concerning the status of project activities and grant funds. Such reports shall be submitted 

in the form and manner as prescribed in the MANUAL and in WRITTEN NOTICES from DHCD.  

 All reports shall be completed in full and submitted at the time prescribed by DHCD. Reports shall 

contain accurate information and shall detail any problems, delays or adverse conditions 

experienced.  

  



   9 03-02/REV07-2022 

8. QUALITY CONTROL - The GRANTEE accepts the responsibility to assure that all grant funded 

PRODUCTS shall be implemented with the highest possible degree of competence, workmanship, 

quality and cost effectiveness. To this end, the GRANTEE shall provide a system of quality control 

to include all aspects of grant administration and project implementation.  

 The GRANTEE shall obtain a certification of inspection and final completion signed by the project 

engineer or by the person responsible for quality control at the completion of each construction 

ACTIVITY. 

9. COMMUNICATIONS - WRITTEN NOTICES shall constitute the only means of binding 

statements of fact or condition between the parties of this agreement. All required reports and 

requests to be issued by the GRANTEE must be made by way of a WRITTEN NOTICE unless 

other means are specified in the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. Please note that project-specific 

technical assistance provided via email does NOT have the weight of official WRITTEN NOTICE. 

Rather, it is comparable to oral technical assistance discussions. All directives, findings and other 

formal issuance by DHCD must be transmitted through a WRITTEN NOTICE unless otherwise 

specified in the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 

 WRITTEN NOTICES shall be signed by and addressed to the appropriate authorized official and 

shall be considered transmitted when delivered in person, uploaded into CAMS or through the 

United States mail. 

 The GRANTEE shall act upon and respond to WRITTEN NOTICES promptly as directed. 

10. ACCESS TO BENEFITS - No access or connection fees shall be charged to low- and 

moderate-income persons for access to improvements or benefits provided by grant funds. All 

low- and moderate-income persons identified in the proposal shall be assured access to and use of 

grant assisted improvements by regular user charges for the specified service. 

11. BENEFITS - The PROJECT shall be implemented in such a manner so as to provide benefits to all 

persons identified in the project proposal. Affirmative steps shall be taken to assure direct benefit 

to low- and moderate-income persons in the number and extent identified in the proposal.  

12. PROGRAM INCOME - Any income derived from activities financed with grant funds is program 

income and shall be utilized in the following manner:  

A. Program income earned during the life of the grant is considered Active Program Income. It 

must be tracked by contract year. A contract year begins with the effective date of the contract 

and concludes 364 days later. Grantees shall track all Program Income based on the date that it 

is earned and report said amounts to DHCD when requested. When Active Program Income 

exceeds $35,000 in any given contract year, 100% of that income earned must be spent 

immediately for eligible project expenses in lieu of drawing down funds. The Grantee may be 

able to access the total amount of CDBG funds in the grant agreement provided the Grantee has 

an approved Program Income Plan, the project is completed in a timely manner, and there are 

eligible project expenses that can be incurred in delivering products consistent with the CDBG 

grant agreement. 

  

  



   10 03-02/REV07-2022 

 When Active Program Income is less than $35,000 in a given contract year, it does not have to 

be expended immediately. It may be held in an interest bearing account. The Active Program 

Income and interest earned from it must be tracked by the Grantee. All Active Program Income 

earned in given program years in amounts of under $35,000 per year can accumulate until the 

end of the project. The cumulative amount of these funds shall be used on eligible CDBG project 

activities at the end of the project. In these cases, the Grantee may use the program income in 

addition to the total amount of CDBG funds in the grant agreement provided the Grantee has an 

approved Program Income Plan, the project is completed in a timely manner, and there are 

eligible project expenses that can be incurred in delivering products consistent with the CDBG 

grant agreement. Funds remaining at Administrative Closeout of the grant must be returned to 

DHCD. 

B. Miscellaneous revenue is proceeds received in a 12-month reporting period (July 1 – June 30) 

of less than $35,000 from an administratively closed project funded with CDBG monies. No 

amount of miscellaneous revenue received in the reporting period may be expended until after 

the period has ended and that fiscal year’s report has been submitted to and approved DHCD. 

Grantees must retain the funds until it is authorized by DHCD to expend the proceeds locally. 

It must be returned to DHCD, unless DHCD has approved a Program Income Plan. Program 

Income Plans must be revised when the Grantee wants to change the activities approved. The 

revised plan must be submitted to DHCD for review and approval. 

C. Inactive program income is all revenue received in a 12-month reporting period (July 1 – June 

30) of ≥$35,000 from an administratively closed project funded with CDBG monies. All 

inactive program income received in the 12-month reporting period will be held in reserve until 

after the reporting period has ended and that fiscal year’s report has been submitted to and 

approved by DHCD.   

 At the time the report is submitted, a specific work plan and budget may be submitted, outlining 

the proposed use of inactive program income. A timeline to expend all funds within twelve (12) 

months must be included. Work plans will only be approved if the proposed activities are the 

same activities for which the proceeds were generated. 

 Inactive program income must be reported to DHCD along with the other required annual 

reports; e.g., Activity and Beneficiary, Section 3, and Contract and Subcontract Activity Reports 

at the end of the state fiscal year.   

 It must be reported for five years and then can be expended according to the approved Program 

Income Plan. 

 Projects assisted with tax credits or other equity investment type projects MUST return all of its 

inactive program income to DHCD. Contact the Division of Community Development’s Fiscal 

Analyst for instructions on how to do so. 

D. Any lump sum receipt of inactive program income of $35,000 or more during a state fiscal year 

(July 1 – June 30) must be reported to DHCD at the time it is received and transmitted to DHCD 

within 60 days. Returned funds should be made payable to Treasurer of Virginia. The check’s 

memo line should indicate the grant number and the type of funds being returned; e.g., CDBG 

inactive program income. A reference in the required audit is not sufficient. 



   11 03-02/REV07-2022 

E. Program income funds must be accounted for separately on the balance sheet. It must be tracked 

by the amounts due and received monthly by client’s name, separated by active/inactive status 

and by contract number, project year and by amount expended annually. Copies of supporting 

documents must be placed in the grant project files. 

13. CONTRACT SECURITY - The GRANTEE shall secure all materials and equipment, purchased or 

paid for with grant funds through insurance coverage of the full value of the same.  

 All persons contracted, employed or otherwise utilized in the grant and having responsibility for the 

management, disposition, expenditure or use of Grant funds shall be bonded by a surety registered 

to do business in the Commonwealth of Virginia in an amount commensurate with their authority 

and potential liability.  

14. METHOD AND TIMING OF PAYMENT - The GRANTEE shall utilize Request for Payment 

procedures as specified in the MANUAL. The GRANTEE shall request funds only for those 

amounts which have been obligated, encumbered or expended through other accounts and which 

can be expended upon receipt or soon thereafter. To this end, the GRANTEE shall develop a 

financial management system which provides for timely expenditure of requested grant funds.  

15. DRAWDOWN AND PAYMENT OF GRANT FUNDS - Drawdowns and expenditure of CDBG 

funds must be made subsequent to or in proportion to other funds within the budget per activity, and 

in accord with an agreed-upon pay-for-performance schedule.  

16. BUDGET REVISIONS/AMENDMENTS - The GRANTEE shall not obligate, encumber, spend or 

otherwise utilize CIG funds for any activity or purpose not included or not in conformance with the 

budget as apportioned and as submitted to DHCD unless the GRANTEE has received explicit 

approval by WRITTEN NOTICE from DHCD to undertake such actions.  

17. CHANGE ORDERS - DHCD must approve all change orders on construction contracts. Any 

change order, regardless of cost, which results in a change of project scope, will be a disallowed 

cost. 

18. TERMINATION, SUSPENSION, CONDITIONS - 

A. FOR CAUSE - If through any cause, the GRANTEE or DHCD fails to comply with the terms, 

conditions or requirements of the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS the other party may terminate 

or suspend this AGREEMENT by giving WRITTEN NOTICE of the same and specifying the 

effective date of termination or suspension at least five (5) days prior to such action.  

 If, after the effective date of any suspension of this AGREEMENT, it is mutually agreeable to 

DHCD and the GRANTEE upon remedy of any contract violation by the GRANTEE or DHCD, 

the suspension may be lifted and the AGREEMENT shall be in full force and effect at a specified 

date after the parties have exchanged WRITTEN NOTICES stating a mutual understanding that 

the cause for suspension has been identified, agreed to and remedied.  

 In the case of contract violations by the GRANTEE, DHCD may impose conditions other than 

termination or suspension which are appropriate to ensure proper grant and project 

administration and adherence to the terms of the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. Such conditions 

must be imposed through WRITTEN NOTICE.  



   12 03-02/REV07-2022 

B. FOR CONVENIENCE - DHCD may terminate this AGREEMENT for convenience in the event 

that DHCD is no longer authorized as an agency to administer the CDBG program or if the 

federal funds allocated are no longer available.  

 The GRANTEE may terminate this AGREEMENT for convenience at any time provided that 

all of the following conditions are met: 

i. The GRANTEE gives DHCD ten (10) days WRITTEN NOTICE; and 

ii. The PRODUCTS which have been initiated either have been completed and may be 

utilized in their stage of completion in a manner consistent with the objectives in the 

GRANTEE’S CIG Proposal, or will be completed by the GRANTEE through its own or 

other resources; and 

iii. The GRANTEE had honored or will honor all contractual obligations to third parties 

affected by the PROJECT; and 

iv. DHCD agrees to the termination.  

 A GRANTEE’S valid termination for convenience in accordance with these CONTRACT 

DOCUMENTS shall not affect nor prejudice the GRANTEE’S future relationship with DHCD 

nor its future consideration as a CIG recipient.  

19. SUBSEQUENT CONTRACTS - The GRANTEE shall remain fully obligated under the provisions 

of the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS notwithstanding its designation of any subsequent or third 

parties for the undertaking of all or part of the PRODUCTS for which the Grant assistance is being 

provided to the GRANTEE.  

 Any GRANTEE or CONTRACTOR or SUBCONTRACTOR which is not the APPLICANT shall 

comply with all the lawful requirements of the APPLICANT necessary to ensure that the PROJECT 

for which this assistance is being provided under this AGREEMENT is carried out in accordance 

with the APPLICANT'S Assurances and Certifications. 

 Grantees shall obtain a financial disclosure report from all contractors, subcontractors, developers, 

and consultants which certifies the financial interest of all officers, directors, principal stockholders, 

or other persons who will have a $50,000 or 10 percent or greater interest in the contract whichever 

is lower.  

20. POLITICAL ACTIVITY PROHIBITED - None of the funds, materials, property or services 

contributed by the DHCD or the GRANTEE, under this AGREEMENT, shall be used in the 

performance of this AGREEMENT for any partisan political activity, or to further the election or 

defeat of any candidate for public office.  

21. INTEREST OF MEMBER OF AGENCY AND OTHERS - No officer, member, or employee of 

the GRANTEE and no member of its governing body, and no other public official of the governing 

body of the locality or localities in which the PROJECT is situated or being carried out, who 

exercises any functions or responsibilities in the review or approval of the undertaking or carrying 

out of this PROJECT shall participate in any decision relating to this AGREEMENT which affects 

his personal interest or have any personal or pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this 

AGREEMENT or the proceeds thereof.  



   13 03-02/REV07-2022 

22. OFFICIALS NOT TO BENEFIT - No member of or delegate to the Congress of the United States 

of America and no Resident Commissioner shall be admitted to any share or part hereof or to any 

benefit to arise therefrom.  

23. CERTIFICATIONS - The GRANTEE certifies that it will comply with the following: 

A. Freedom of Information Act;  

B. Virginia Conflict of Interest Act; and  

C. Virginia Fair Employment Contracting Act. 

24. BENEFICIARIES - There are no third party beneficiaries of this AGREEMENT. The provisions 

contained in these CONTRACT DOCUMENTS represent the entire AGREEMENT between 

DHCD and the GRANTEE. The provisions are designed to assist in meeting the community needs 

of the GRANTEE identified in the GRANTEE’S CIG proposal, but are not designed to accrue to 

the specific benefit of any individual person or entity residing or located in the GRANTEE’S 

community or elsewhere. Consequently, the terms of these CONTRACT DOCUMENTS may be 

enforced by DHCD or the GRANTEE exclusively and not by any individual person or entity 

residing or located in the GRANTEE’S community or elsewhere as a third-party beneficiary of this 

contract. 

25. AUDITS – All GRANTEES that receive funding during a program year and/or have projects in 

progress are required to submit financial statements to DHCD. Required statements are as follows:  

Financial Statement**, Reviewed Financial Statement prepared by an independent Certified Public 

Accountant (CPA), Financial Statements that have been audited by an independent CPA or an audit 

required by the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), (2 CFR 200 Subpart F), audited by an 

independent CPA. Please see the table below to determine which document your organization is 

required to submit.   

 The threshold requirements outlined below are the minimal standards required by DHCD. We 

strongly encourage all organizations receiving funds from DHCD to undertake the highest level of 

financial management review to ensure practices and procedures are fully examined and evaluated.  

Threshold Requirement Document 

Total annual expenditures  <$100,000 

(Regardless of source) 

Financial Statement(s) prepared by 

organizations** 

Total annual expenditure  between 

$100,001 and $300,000 (Regardless of 

source) 

Reviewed Financial Statement(s) prepared by an 

Independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) 

Total annual expenditures >  $300,000 

(Regardless of source) 

Financial Statement(s) that have been audited by 

an Independent CPA 

Federal expenditures >$750,000  2 CFR 200 Subpart F Audit – Audited by an 

Independent CPA 

**Does not require preparation by a CPA 

 Required financial statements must be submitted yearly, within nine (9) months after the end of 

your fiscal year or 30 (thirty) days after it has been accepted (reviewed financial Statement(s), 

audited financial statement(s), and 2 CFR 200 Subpart F audit only) -whichever comes first. 



   14 03-02/REV07-2022 

 Entities must electronically submit their financial statement(s), reviewed financial statement(s), 

audit financial statement(s), 2 CFR 200 Subpart F audit in DHCD’s Centralized Application and 

Management System (CAMS,) which requires the organization to register in CAMS at 

https://dmz1.dhcd.virginia.gov/camsportal/Login.aspx. Entities are required to have a DHCD 

reviewed and approved current audit or financial statement(s) in order to submit a remittance 

request. 

 

 Additional reporting requirement (for local governments and non-profit organizations) 

 

 In accordance with the Code of Federal Regulations, Title 2 CFR Part 200 Subpart F, non-Federal 

entities that expend $750,000 or more in federal awards within the entity’s fiscal year are required 

to complete a “Data Collection Form for Reporting on Audits of States, Local Governments, and 

Non-Profit Organizations” (see Appendix A for sample form), upload your audit to CAMS and 

submit a copy of your Audited Financial Statement to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse at: 

https://harvester.census.gov/facweb/files/2013%20Form%20SF-SAC.pdf.  

 

 The full DHCD Audit Policy, including an explanation of the specific document requirements, can 

be found online at: https://www.dhcd.virginia.gov/sites/default/files/Docx/audit-policy/dhcd-audit-

policy.pdf. 

 

 



   15 03-02/REV07-2022 

ASSURANCES/CERTIFICATIONS 

 

The GRANTEE hereby assures and certifies that: 

1. It possesses legal authority to execute the PROJECT. 

2. Its governing body has duly adopted or passed as an official act a resolution, motion, or similar 

action authorizing the filing of the PROJECT application including all understandings and 

assurances contained therein, and directing and authorizing the person identified as the official 

representative of the GRANTEE to act in connection with the PROJECT application and to provide 

such additional information as may be required.  

3. Its chief executive officer or other officer of GRANTEE approved by the Virginia Department of 

Housing and Community Development: 

A. Consents to assume the status of a responsible Federal official under the National 

Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (NEPA) and other provisions of Federal law, as specified 

at 24 CFR 58.5(a) through (h) which further the purposes of NEPA insofar as the provisions 

of such Federal law apply to this Grant; 

B. Is authorized and consents on behalf of the GRANTEE and himself to accept the jurisdiction 

of the Federal and Commonwealth of Virginia courts for the purpose of enforcement of his 

responsibilities as such an official.  

4. It will comply with the regulations, policies, guidelines and requirements of the Code of Federal 

Regulations 2 CFR 200, as amended or replaced from time to time, as they relate to the PROJECT, 

acceptance, and use of Federal funds under this Grant; and, as applicable, all State laws and 

administrative requirements which may supersede them (by virtue of being more stringent).  

5. It will comply with: 

A. Executive Order 11063 on equal opportunity in housing and nondiscrimination in the sale or 

rental of housing built with Federal assistance. 

B. Section 906 of Public Law 100-625 (Cranston-Gonzalez National Affordable Housing Act) 

which prohibits discrimination on the basis of religion or religious affiliation. No person shall 

be excluded from participation in, denied the benefit of, or be subjected to discrimination under 

any program or activity funded in whole or in part with CDBG funds on the basis of his or her 

religion or religious affiliation. 

C. Executive Order 11246, as amended (Contracts/subcontracts above $10,000) 

 During the performance of this contract, the GRANTEE agrees as follows: 

(1) The GRANTEE will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment 

because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. The GRANTEE will take 

affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated 

during employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. 

Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following: Employment, upgrading, 

demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates 



   16 03-02/REV07-2022 

of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including 

apprenticeship. The GRANTEE agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to 

employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided setting forth the 

provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.  

(2) The GRANTEE will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on 

behalf of the GRANTEE, state that all qualified applicants will receive considerations for 

employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.  

(3) The GRANTEE will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he 

has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be 

provided advising the said labor union or workers' representatives of the GRANTEE's 

commitments under this section, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places 

available to employees and applicants for employment.  

(4) The GRANTEE will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246, as amended, 

and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor.  

(5) The GRANTEE will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 

11246, as amended, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or 

pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the 

administering agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain 

compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders.  

(6) In the event of the GRANTEE's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this 

contract or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, 

terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and the GRANTEE may be declared 

ineligible for further Government contracts or federally assisted construction contracts in 

accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246, as amended, and such 

other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 

11246, as amended, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as 

otherwise provided by law.  

(7) The GRANTEE will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding paragraph 

(1) and the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (7) in every subcontract or purchase order 

unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant 

to section 204 of Executive Order 11246, as amended, so that such provisions will be 

binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The GRANTEE will take such action with 

respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the administering agency may direct as a 

means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance: Provided, 

however, That in the event a GRANTEE becomes involved in, or is threatened with, 

litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by the administering 

agency the GRANTEE may request the United States to enter into such litigation to 

protect the interests of the United States. 

D. Subcontracts 

 Each contractor or subcontractor shall include the equal opportunity clause in each of its 

subcontracts.  



   17 03-02/REV07-2022 

6. All parties to this contract hereby agree to comply with the provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights 

Act of 1964 (Public Law 88-352) which provides:  that no person in the United States shall, on the 

grounds of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in be denied the benefits 

of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal financial 

assistance of any dollar amount – no minimum threshold. 

7. All parties to this contract hereby agree to comply with the provisions of Section 109 of the Housing 

and Community Development Act or 1974, as amended which provides:  No person in the United 

States shall on the ground of race, color, national origin, or sex be excluded from participation in, 

be denied the benefits of or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity funded in 

whole or in part with funds made available under this title. Any prohibition against discrimination 

on the basis of age under the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 or with respect to an otherwise 

qualified handicapped individual as provided in section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 shall 

also apply to any such program or activity of any dollar amount – no minimum threshold. 

8. It will establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using positions for a purpose that is or gives 

the appearance of being motivated by a desire for private gain for themselves or others, particularly 

those with whom they have family, business, or other ties.  

9. It will comply with the provisions of the Hatch Act which limits the political activity of employees.  

10. It will require buildings or facilities designed with funds provided under this Grant to comply with 

the "American Standard Specifications for Making Buildings and Facilities Accessible to, and 

Usable by, the Physically Handicapped," Number A-117.1-R 1980, in accordance with the Virginia 

Uniform Statewide Building Code. The Grantee will be responsible for conducting inspections to 

insure compliance with these specifications by the contractor.  

11. It will comply with Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended, 

requiring that to the greatest extent feasible opportunities for training and employment be given to 

lower-income residents of the project area and contracts for work in connection with the project be 

awarded to eligible business concerns which are located in, or owned in substantial part by, persons 

residing in the area of the project. 

12. It will comply with the provisions of Executive Order 11988, relating to evaluation of flood hazards 

and Executive Order 12088 relating to the prevention, control, and abatement of water pollution. 

13. It will comply with Section 104 (l) of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as 

amended, in that: it has adopted and is enforcing a policy prohibiting the use of excessive force by 

law enforcement agencies within its jurisdiction against any individuals engaged in nonviolent civil 

rights demonstrations and a policy of enforcing applicable State and local laws against physically 

barring entrance to or exit from a facility or location which is subject of such nonviolent civil rights 

demonstration within its jurisdiction. 

 

 

 

               

 Lou Wallace, Russell County Board of Supervisors  Date 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

July 19, 2022 

 

 

 

Lonzo Lester 

Russell County County Administrator 

137 Highland Drive 

Lebanon,Virginia 24266 

 

RE: Russell County Victim Witness Program 

 

Dear Lonzo Lester: 

 

Congratulations on being a recipient of the above referenced grant program! Your DCJS grant 

award number is 23-O1108VW19 and was approved for a total award of $70,000, funded in part 

through Award Numbers 2019-V2-GX-0054, 2020-V2-GX-0048, and 15POVC-21-GG-00602-

ASSI. The project period is 07/01/2022 through 06/30/2023. 

 

Included with this letter is a Statement of Grant Award/Acceptance (SOGA). Please note hard 

copies of the General Special Conditions, as well as the Reporting Requirements and Projected Due 

Dates, are now referred to as Conditions and Requirements and will be posted online at 

https://www.dcjs.virginia.gov/grants/grant-requirements within the next two weeks.       

 

In addition to the general Special Conditions, there may be grant specific Special Conditions 

related to your Grant Award called Encumbrances. If there are any, please submit documents related 

to your Encumbrances via the On-line Grants Management System (OGMS) at 

https://ogms.dcjs.virginia.gov/. If you have not previously done so, you must register in order to use 

this web-based system. The instructions on Registering for a New Account and Submitting Action Item 

Encumbrances are posted here https://www.dcjs.virginia.gov/grants/ogms-training-resources along 

with other resources and training videos. All registrants will be approved within 3 – 5 business days.  

 

We will be happy to assist you in any way we can to assure your project’s success. To indicate 

your acceptance of the award and conditions, please sign the included SOGA and return it 

electronically within the next 60 days to grantsmgmt@dcjs.virginia.gov. If you have questions, contact 

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight



your DCJS Grant Monitor Sharon Reed at 804-658-8179 or via email at 

Sharon.reed@dcjs.virginia.gov.  

 

Sincerely,  

 

 

      Jackson Miller 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



STATEMENT OF GRANT AWARD (SOGA) 
 

Virginia Department of Criminal Justice Services 

1100 Bank Street, 12th Floor 

Richmond, Virginia 23219 

Project Director Project Administrator Finance Officer 
 

Casie Hess 

Victim Witness Director 

53 E. Main Street 

Lebanon, Virginia 24266 

276-889-8225 

casie@russellcountyca.com 

 

Lonzo Lester 

Russell County County Administrator 

137 Highland Drive 

Lebanon, Virginia 24266 

276-889-8000 

lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us 

 

Alicia McGlothlin 

Russell County Treasurer 

137 Highland Drive 

Lebanon, Virginia 24266 

276-889-8028 

alicia.mcglothlin@bvu.net 

 

*Please indicate your ICR in the space provided, if applicable. As the duly authorized 

representative, the undersigned, having received the Statement of Grant Awards (SOGA) and 

reviewing the Special Conditions, hereby accepts this grant and agree to the conditions and 

provisions of all other Federal and State laws and rules and regulations that apply to this award.  

      

Signature:  ______________________________  
        Authorized Official (Project Administrator) 

      

Title:   ______________________________ 

 

 

Date:   ______________________________ 

SFY 2022-2023 Victim Witness Grant Program (Year 2) 

Subgrantee: Russell     

DCJS Grant Number:  23-O1108VW19  

UEI Number:   WMRHA68SMK19 

Grant Start Date:  07/01/2022  Grant End Date: 06/30/2023 

Federal Grant Number:   2019-V2-GX-0054, 2020-V2-GX-0048, and 15POVC-21-GG-00602-ASSI 

Federal Awardee:  OVC  Federal Catalog Number:  16.575 

Project Description:   To provide direct services for crime victims. 

Federal Start Date:  10/1/2018, 10/1/2019, and 10/1/2020 

Federal Funds:   $49,000   

State General Funds:   $0 

State Special Funds:  $21,000 

Local Match:   $0______ 

 

Total Budget:   $70,000  Indirect Cost Rate: _____%  *If applicable 

 



Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight



Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight



Tracy
Highlight



 
The Board of Supervisors of Russell County, in regular meeting on the 12th day of 
September 2022, adopted the following: 
 

RESOLUTION FOR HIGHWAY SYSTEM CHANGES RESULTING FROM THE 
CONSTRUCTION OF VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION PROJECT 

7058-097-105, G302, G303 
 
WHEREAS, the Virginia Department of Transportation has constructed a HUD 
Urban Renewal Site and relocated a portion of the Clinch River under Project 
7058-097-105, G302, G303 that have necessitated highway system changes on 
Route 751, and 
 
WHEREAS, the project sketch and VDOT Form AM4.3, attached and incorporated 
herein as a part of this resolution, define adjustments required in the secondary 
systems of state highways as a result of that construction, and 
 
WHEREAS, Bush Place, a public street maintained by the Town of Saint Paul, VA 
was constructed under Project 7058-097-105, G303 and serves the same citizens 
as served by that portion of Route 751 identified on the project sketch and VDOT 
Form AM4.3 to be abandoned, which portion of Route 751 was demolished during 
construction of Project 7058-097-105, G302, G303; and 
 
WHEREAS, the portion of old road identified to be discontinued are deemed by the 
Virginia Department of Transportation to no longer provide sufficient public 
benefit to warrant maintenance at public expense as part of the secondary 
system of state highways, and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, this Board requests the Virginia Department 
of Transportation to abandon Segment B-C from the secondary system of state 
highways, pursuant to §33.2-912 of the Code of Virginia, and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, this Board supports the action of the Commonwealth 
Transportation Board to discontinue Segment A-B as a part of the secondary 
system of state highways, pursuant to §33.2-908 of the Code of Virginia, and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, the Russell County Board of Supervisors orders that 
a certified copy of this resolution be forwarded to the Resident Engineer for the 
Virginia Department of Transportation.  
 
Recorded Vote      A Copy Teste: 
Moved By:  ________________________ 
Seconded By:  ______________________ 
Yeas:  ____________________________  ____________     
Nays:                     Lonzo Lester, County Administrator 

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight



Street Name To Termini Length N
u

m
b

e
r 

O
f 

L
a
n

e
s

Recordation 

Reference

0.16 MI W RTE 

640 [C] 0.13

Street Name To Termini Length N
u

m
b

e
r 

O
f 

L
a
n

e
s

Recordation 

Reference

0.03 MI W 

ROUTE 640 [B] 0.03

R
ig

h
t 

o
f 

W
a
y
 

W
id

th

38278151IN RUSSELL COUNTY

By Resolution of the governing body adopted September 5, 2022

R
o

u
te

 N
u

m
b

e
r

751

R
o

u
te

 N
u

m
b

e
r

751

The following VDOT Form AM-4.3 is hereby attached and incorporated as part of 

the governing body's resolution for changes to the secondary system of state 

Abandonment - Project by VDOT §33.2-912

Discontinuance - VDOT Project §33.2-908

A Copy Testee           Signed (County Official):__________________________________________________________

Project/Subdivision:

Report of Changes in the Secondary System of State Highways

From Termini

0.03 MI W RTE 640 

[B]

From Termini

ROUTE 640 [A]

7058-097-105, G302, G303

R
ig

h
t 

o
f 

W
a
y
 

W
id

th

Tracy
Highlight



7058-097-105, G303
HUD URBAN RENEWAL SITE

7058-097-105, G302

TVA CLINCH RIVER CHANNEL CHANGE

NOT TO SCALE

751

761

640

640

640900

58
A

B

C

D

E

CLINCH RIVER

LEGEND:

ABANDONMENT
DISCONTINUANCE
MILEAGE SPLIT
EXISTING ROUTE
RAILROAD
PRIVATE DRIVE

TO RTE 270

TO
 R

TE
 63

VA
 D

EP
T.

 O
F 

TR
AN

SP
OR

TA
TI

ON
BR

IS
TO

L 
DI

ST
RI

CT
LE

BA
N

ON
 R

ES
ID

EN
CY

RU
SS

EL
L 

CO
UN

TY
 (0

83
)

Ch
an

ge
s 

in
 th

e 
Se

co
nd

ar
y 

Sy
st

em
 o

f S
ta

te
 H

ig
hw

ay
s 

re
su

lti
ng

 fr
om

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
of

:
PR

OJ
EC

T 
70

58
-0

97
-1

05
, G

30
2,

 G
30

3

BUSH PLACE NOTE:  BUSH PLACE WAS CONSTRUCTED AS
THE REPLACEMENT ROAD FOR ROUTE 751.  IT IS
A PUBLIC STREET MAINTAINED BY THE TOWN OF
ST. PAUL, VA & NOT IN THE VDOT SYSTEM

0.
13

0.
03

0.04

0.61

SEGMENT A-B:  ROUTE 751-SECTION 33.2-908 DISCONTINUANCE
from Route 640 to 0.03 mi. W Route 640, L = 0.03 mile

SEGMENT B-C:  ROUTE 751-SECTION 33.2-912 ABANDONMENT
from 0.03 mi W Rte 640 to 0.16 mi W Rte 640, L = 0.13 mile

SEGMENT D-E:  ROUTE 640-MILEAGE SPLIT
from Rte 761 to Rte 900, L = 0.65 mile

ICR #38278151
Dr

aw
n 

by
 J

oh
n 

Bo
lli

ng
 0

8-
12

-2
02

2



Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight



Tracy
Highlight



8/24/22, 10:46 AM Russell County Mail - Updated School recession money June 2022

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=28e834d897&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f%3A1742050913462978991&simpl=msg-f%3A1742050913… 1/1

Lonzo Lester <lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us>

Updated School recession money June 2022 
1 message

alicia.mcglothlin@bvu.net <alicia.mcglothlin@bvu.net> Wed, Aug 24, 2022 at 9:53 AM
To: Lonzo Lester <lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us>
Cc: Lou Jessee Wallace <design_printers@email.com>

 

 

Mr. Lester,

 

The amount of recession money from the School Board has changed.  We previously thought that the amount would be $574,752.18.  But that has changed
to $356,522.13.

 

The reason for the change is Brooke Webb the new Finance Director for the schools failed to send a payroll check register for June 2022.  While balancing
the School’s bank statement for July 2022 there were checks on the statement that I hadn’t received a check register for in June 2022.

 

I contacted Brooke and she stated that she failed to send all the check registers.

 

I have attached all correspondence between myself and Brooke for your records. 

 

If you or the board have questions about this please feel free to contact me.

 

 

 

Alicia K. McGlothlin

Treasurer of Russell County

276-889-8030

alicia.mcglothlin@bvu.net

Website:  www.russellcountyva.us

 

“CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE:  This email message, including any attachments is for the sole use of the intended recipient(s) and may contain confidential
information.  Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure or distribution is prohibited.  If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender by reply
email and delete all copies of the original message.”

 

School Board recession fund 2022.pdf 
263K

mailto:alicia.mcglothlin@bvu.net
http://www.russellcountyva.us/
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=28e834d897&view=att&th=182d0213759b09af&attid=0.1&disp=attd&safe=1&zw
Tracy
Highlight

































Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight



RUSSELL COUNTY, VIRGINIA 
DEPUTY EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 

COORDINATOR 
 

 

Russell County, VA, is seeking a part-time Deputy Emergency Management Coordinator. 
This person will work directly for the Emergency Management Coordinator.  This position 
will normally work 29 hours per week but may include additional hours during an emergency 
response.  Hourly rate is based on education and experience. 

 
Job duties include researching, submission, and administration of federal and state grants; 
planning and implementing disaster response plans and activities; recovery and mitigation; 
coordinating activities in the Emergency Operations Center (EOP) during emergencies; 
designing and participating in local and regional exercises; performing damage assessments 
and reimbursement requests; developing and presenting public education information; assist 
in managing grants; advising coordinator and administrator in emergency management 
matters; maintaining and updating emergency operations plan; and performing other duties as 
required.  
 
Applicant requirements include any combination of education and experience in Emergency 
Management or a service-related field.  Preference given to individuals with professional 
experience in the field of Emergency Management or Emergency Services.  
 
Program training of FEMA Series ICS 100, 200, 300, 400, 700, and 800 is required within one 
year of employment.   

 
Qualified candidates should submit a county application to the County Administration 
Office. The position will remain open until filled. After a review of applications submitted by 
interested candidates, the county will interview candidates who most closely meet the 
established criteria.  

 
Hiring for Russell County shall be accomplished without regard to race, color, religion, 
national origin, gender, pregnancy, childbirth or related medical conditions, age, marital status, 
or disability unless otherwise permitted by County policy or applicable law. Applicants hired by 
the County must be citizens of the United States or legally authorized to work in the United 
States. Reasonable accommodations will be provided for persons with disabilities if requested. 

Tracy
Highlight



RUSSELL COUNTY TOURISM COORDINATOR 

The Russell County Tourism Coordinator performs work in all aspects of a comprehensive tourism 
program for Russell County attracting tourists to the County for its historical and natural 
assets.  Employee will work with local businesses and other tourism representatives to promote 
visitation.  Employee must exercise tact and courtesy in frequent contact with volunteers, 
employees, business representatives, agency representatives, and the public.   Employee reports 
to the County Administrator. 

1.    Creates and/or directs the creation of marketing media, including brochures, posters, flyers, 
print and web advertisements, and social media.  Maintain and periodically update County’s 
Tourism website and social media accounts. 
 
2.    Plans and arranges distribution and placement of marketing items; routinely assesses 
inventory throughout sites for restocking or removal.  Selects and recommends placement and 
evaluates the effectiveness of distribution locations. 
 
3.    Provides input on tourism budget recommendations for the annual operating budget; 
monitors revenue and expenditure reports; makes recommendations for advertising and 
merchandise expenditures; research availability of and assists with grant applications. 
 
4.    Routinely meets with business and other tourism representatives to share information in 
order to better promote Russell County as a tourism destination.  Partners with lodging, 
restaurants, and specialty shop owners/managers to create special package deals; maintains a 
constant flow of useful and accurate information.  Explores opportunities to expand tourism 
assets and information services. 
 
5.    Serves on the Tourism Advisory Committee.  Represents Russell County at tourism related 
workshops, seminars, and meetings.  Reads various professional journals and other literature to 
enhance and maintain knowledge of trends and developments in the tourism industry. 
 
6.    Makes presentations to local civic, business, historical, and cultural groups regarding 
Russell’s tourism efforts and to solicit volunteers.  Supports local and regional events that 
impact tourism. 
 
7.    Responds to consumer inquiries via phone, mail, email and/or in person.  Prepares tourism 
informational packets.  Provides up-to-date information for local event calendars, Virginia 
Tourism Corporation website, and other travel-related websites. 
 
8.    Provides training programs and familiarization trips for employees of tourism-related 
businesses (program development, speaker solicitation, development of training materials).   
 
9.    Prepares a variety of analytical studies, reports, manuals, and related information to include 
regular financial and visitation reports.  Provides information and reports of performance 
measures and budget.   
 
 

Tracy
Highlight







Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight



Tracy
Highlight



Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight



Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight




































































































































	Authorization - Minutes BOS.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Authorization - Expenditures.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Presentations.pdf
	Meeting: 9/12/22      6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Presentations - Attorney.pdf
	Meeting: 9/12/22         6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Presentations - Attorney.pdf
	Meeting: 9/12/22         6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Landfill Feasibility RFQ.pdf
	Landfill Development Feasibility
	Technical and Environmental Consulting Services

	Potesta - Proposal for Consulting Services for Landfill Feasibility Study (0103-22-0164).pdf
	Standard Terms and Conditions for 2022 with Rate Sheets.pdf
	1. Potesta & Associates, Inc., hereinafter referred to as POTESTA, is an Equal Opportunity Employer and is in compliance with the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 and governmental requirements relating to Right-To-Know regulations.  The engineering and...
	2. Services performed by POTESTA under this Agreement will be conducted in a manner consistent with that level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the profession currently practicing in the same locality under similar conditions.  No ...
	3. Unless stated otherwise, any cost estimate presented in the attached proposal is for budgetary purposes only and is not a fixed lump-sum price.  The actual cost of POTESTA’s engineering and consulting services and all expenses may be less than that...
	4. These terms are subject to and incorporate the provisions of POTESTA’s attached proposal.  In the event of any conflict, the terms of the accompanying proposal shall govern.
	5. Invoices will be submitted periodically as required (but not more frequently than every two (2) weeks) unless charges for such periods are minimal, in which event an invoice will be submitted when total charges exceed $500.00, or when the work is c...
	6. Client agrees to limit POTESTA’s liability to Client and to all construction contractors and subcontractors on the project due to POTESTA’s professional negligent acts, errors, or omissions, such that the total aggregate liability of POTESTA to all...
	7. POTESTA shall indemnify and hold harmless the Client, its officers, directors, shareholders and employees (collectively, “Client Indemnities”), from and against those liabilities, losses, damages, and costs (including reasonable attorney’s fees whe...
	Client shall indemnify and hold harmless POTESTA, its officers, directors, shareholders and employees (collectively, “Client Indemnities”), from and against those liabilities, losses, damages, and costs (including reasonable attorney’s fees where reco...
	8. Time required for POTESTA personnel to travel between POTESTA’s office and the site (or other destination applicable to the project) is charged in accordance with the attached hourly rate schedule.
	9. POTESTA expenses shall be charged according to the attached Field Supply and Equipment Rate Sheet.  External expenses, such as airfare, subcontracted services, etc., shall be charged at direct cost (including taxes) plus a twelve percent (12%) surc...
	10. Specialized equipment purchased with Client’s approval specifically for the project will become Client’s property upon completion of the work.  The purchase price and maintenance cost of such equipment shall be charged to Client at cost plus twelv...
	11. Client acknowledges that POTESTA’s reports, boring logs, field data, field notes, laboratory test data, calculations, estimates, permit applications and other similar documents are instruments of professional service, not products.  Although owner...
	12. Client recognizes that conclusions regarding the assessed condition(s) of the site do not necessarily represent a warranty that all portions of the site are of the same quality.  Specific conditions may not be observable or readily interpreted fro...
	13. Client recognizes that unanticipated or changed conditions may be encountered during construction.  Client agrees to retain POTESTA to observe construction, and POTESTA agrees to assign qualified persons to observe and report on the quality of wor...
	14. The responsibility of POTESTA’s field representative(s) is to make observations and conduct field tests.  This work does not include supervision or direction of the work of the contractor, his employees, or agents.  The contractor should be so adv...
	15. Soil, rock, water and/or other samples obtained from the project site are the property of Client.  POTESTA will preserve such samples for no longer than ninety (90) calendar days after the issuance of any document that includes the data obtained f...
	16. Unless otherwise agreed, Client or Owner will furnish right-of-entry on the land and/or facilities for POTESTA to make the planned borings and other explorations and perform necessary sampling.  POTESTA will take reasonable precautions to minimize...
	17. In the execution of Client’s work, POTESTA will take reasonable precautions to avoid damage or injury to subterranean structures or utilities.  The Client and Owner agree to hold POTESTA harmless for any damages to subterranean structures or utili...
	18. Client agrees to advise POTESTA about the presence of any known hazardous substances or any known condition(s) existing in, on, or near the site presenting a potential danger to human health or the environment.  If during performance of services, ...
	a. If practicable, in the judgment of POTESTA, the original scope of services will be completed in accordance with the procedures originally intended in POTESTA’s proposal for services.
	b. The scope of services will be modified and the estimate of charges revised to include study of the previously unforeseen conditions or occurrences, such revision to be in writing and signed by the parties and incorporated therein.
	c. The services for the work in POTESTA’s proposal will be terminated, effective on the date specified in writing by POTESTA, and POTESTA shall recover any extra charges associated with the previously unforeseen conditions or occurrences, as well as a...

	19. Neither the Client nor POTESTA may delegate, assign, sublet or transfer their duties or interest, as described in the Standard Terms and Conditions and accompanying proposal, without the written consent of the other party.  Unless stated otherwise...
	20. In the event that a dispute should arise relating to the performance of the services to be provided under the Standard Terms and Conditions and the proposal, it is agreed that the dispute shall be mediated.  Should mediation fail and litigation re...
	21. The law of the State of West Virginia will govern the validity of this Agreement, its interpretation and performance, and remedies for contract breach or any other claims related to this Agreement.  All legal proceedings shall be filed in Kanawha ...
	22. POTESTA may submit to Client an opinion of the probable cost required to construct work.  POTESTA is not a construction cost estimator or construction contractor, nor should POTESTA’s rendering an opinion of probable construction costs be consider...
	23. Client or POTESTA may terminate this Agreement upon fourteen (14) days’ written notice to the other for reasons included in the notice.  In the event such termination becomes necessary, the party effecting termination shall so notify the other par...
	24. Client shall not be liable to POTESTA and POTESTA shall not be liable to Client for any consequential damages incurred by either due to the fault of the other, regardless of the nature of this fault, or whether it was committed by the Client or PO...
	25. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all provisions of this Agreement allocating responsibility or liability between Client and POTESTA shall survive the completion of the services hereunder and the termination of...
	26. POTESTA shall indicate to Client the information needed for rendering of services hereunder, and Client shall provide to POTESTA such information as is available to Client.  Client recognizes that it is not possible for POTESTA to assure the suffi...
	27. This Agreement shall not create any rights or benefits to parties other than Client or POTESTA.  No third-party shall have the right to rely on POTESTA’s opinions rendered in connection with POTESTA’s services without POTESTA’s written consent and...
	28. If, for any reason, any one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement are held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision herein, and thi...
	29. For engagements that we accept for other than regular clients, our normal practice is to require a retainer or security deposit in advance of our performing any significant services.  On occasion, such a deposit is required at a later time due to ...
	30. POTESTA will not have any obligation to issue a report or other document, or communicate our research, analyses, or conclusions, and will not have any obligation to appear for or provide written or oral testimony or evidence at trial, deposition o...
	31. CERTIFICATIONS
	31.1 For purposes of this Agreement, “certification” means to state or declare a professional opinion based on the standard of performance set forth in Item 2 above.
	31.2 POTESTA shall not be required to execute certificates that would (i) result in POTESTA having to certify, guarantee or warrant the existence of conditions whose existence POTESTA cannot reasonably ascertain under the existing Services; (ii) requi...
	31.3 A professional’s certification in no way relieves other parties from meeting their respective requirements imposed by contract or other means, including commonly accepted industry standards and practices.  If required as a part of its Services, P...
	1Field Equipment and Supply Rate Sheets for 2022.xls.pdf
	Eqpt. Rental Rates
	Field Supply Rates



	Abortion Criminal Code Sections.pdf
	Va. Code Ann. § 18.2-71
	Va. Code Ann. § 18.2-71.1
	Va. Code Ann. § 18.2-72
	Va. Code Ann. § 18.2-73
	Va. Code Ann. § 18.2-74.1
	Va. Code Ann. § 18.2-74
	Va. Code Ann. § 18.2-75
	Va. Code Ann. § 18.2-76
	Va. Code Ann. § 18.2-76.1

	Reports1.pdf
	Meeting: 9/12/22         6:00 PM

	Presentations.pdf
	Meeting: 9/12/22      6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:




